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Financial Highlights 29 28 27 %chonge

s18/lAis9u / Total Revenue 13.936 15513 16,101 -10%
selAannnngune / Sales Revenue 13.458 15,106 15,636 -11%
Anladudiu / Gross Profit 2,501 2,561 2,559 -2%
fnlganNnngATiuNIg / Operating Profit 1,848 1,856 1927 0%
Alsneunaniiieananii Adousen wazAdas ML / EBTDA 2,853 2,818 2,777 1%
rinlsaviBnausian1sEniiu / Net Profit before Exceptional ltems 2,043 1910 2,057 7%
fils @anuy dwdutl / Net Profit (Loss) for the year 2,043 1910 2,449 7%
FuUnSnddu / Total Assets 15,811 14,312 13,773 10%
NINEAUNNIT-GYIB / Net Fixed Assets 5,605 5875 5567 -5%
$9UMiiaY / Total Licbilities 2,805 1914 2,483 47%
davgfianiu / shareholders Equity 13006 12397 11,291 5%
mﬁﬁquﬁ (Ruam) / Net (Cash) Debt / Equity -0.25 -0.22 -0.08 -
rlsaninasinnnisasaliannnisune / Net Profit (after tax) % Sales 15% 13% 16% 15%
lsneunanitieanand Adansan warAndiasmihesentae / EBITDA Margin | 21% 19% 18% 1%
dngImaLUNUEDalu / Retun on Equity 16% 15% 22% 2%
ﬁuﬁumaﬁwﬁiaﬁu / Dividend per share (adjusted for share split) 1.4 1.20 1.30 17%
fnsRuifunaans (lisausnenisanii) / Payout ratio (excl. exceptional items) 55% 52% 52% 6%
ﬁﬁiiﬁiaﬁ:uﬁamwmimﬂﬁu / EPS before Exceptional ltem 2.53 2.30 2.48 10%
rilsmaviundesenisaniiu / EPS ofter Exceptional Irem 253 2.30 2.95 10%
s mutinydmadiu / Book Value per share 16.16 14.93 13.60 8%
ﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬂg%ﬂﬁu / Shares balance repurchased 25.60 4.48 = =
ﬁi’wmuﬁu Q] ?;uﬂ) / Number of shares outstanding (year end) 804.88 826.00 830.41 -3%
B C Asertl then roon

W Watch Movement Microdisplay M IC Hana Tech. (HK)
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Dear Shareholder

As we entered the year 2009, the storm clouds had already
began to gather in what was anticipated and did fumn out to be
one of the most volatile and challenging years in our company’s
history - a year that turned out to be one of distinctly two halves.

Much has been written about the financial carmage that
engulfed the world in 2008/9 and brought many industries
to its knees. Hana was also caught up in this economic storm
necessitating your management to take swift and immediate
action early on.

By the end of the first quarter, we had adjusted our cost
base to what was considered an appropriate level in order to ride
the down tumn in demand. This was done though aggressive head
count reductions, salary cut backs and a number of other cost
saving initiatives. We bore the brunt of these ‘adjustment’ in
the first quarter and despite the associated costs, still managed
to achieve a positive result.

By the middle of the second quarter we began to see a
thawing in the paralysis of demand. It became clear that the severity
in cutback had over shot - the supply chain had completely dried
up. Spot orders began to tum into planned orders and the wheels
of industry started o tum again. By the third quarter the electronics
industry was scrambling to catch up and replenish the overly depleted
supply chain and we had fo re-hire our work force to keep up with
the growing demand. This has continued into the fourth quarter.

In 2009 Hana Group sales declined 11% from
THB 15,106m in 2008 to THB 13.458m Operating income
declined 0.4% from THB 1,856m to THB 1,848m. EBITDA
grew 1.2% from THB 2,818m to THB 2,853m and cash reserves
and financial investments grew 28.3% from THB 4,678m to THB
6,00Tm.

Our IC operations bore the brunt of the recession
both in Ayutthaya and Jiaxing as many industries wound
down inventories to preserve cash. The bulk of the lay-offs
occurred in these two divisions. The mobile hand set,
consumer electronics and auto industries all cut back
aggressively and we saw demand drop over 50% by the end of
the first quarter. However by the third quarter this situation had
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WEITIYIN NNUNSENS / Mr. Bancha Tamprakom
119287UN391UN"9 / Chairman of the Board of Directors

reversed in spectacular fashion requiring us to make our first
major capital expansions of the year and incredibly we ended
the year delivering record weekly outputs which are anticipated
to continue into 2010.

In contrast our PCBA operations especially in
Lamphun, whilst not immune to the recession, went on
from strength to strength capturing market share in the
interconnectivity sector, (tfouch pads and control panels), and ultimately
recording arecord year both in sales and operating profits. The diversity
in customer base and excellence in operational performance was
rewarded in a consolidating industry and to achieve such records in
this most challenging of years was an outstanding result.

Our PCBA operations in Jiaxing was less fortunate due to
a difference in industry exposure but never-the-less remained
profitable throughout the year and is now better positioned to
benefit from a recovery in 2010

Our Custom package Group (CPG) also had a difficult year
and with the building lease ending in early 2014, the down sizing
from our customers has started to take affect.

Financially, Hana has weathered this storm in excellent heallth.
In the first quarter we completed our treasury stock buy back
programme purchasing 3.08% of outstanding shares at a cost of
THB 262.98m - an average cost of THB 10.30 per share.

Whilst EBITDA has reduced (marginally), our swift cost reduction
and capital expenditure cut backs has allowed us fo strengthen
the balance sheet further ending the year with a record net cash
and financial investments totalling THB 6,001m. This will place our
group in an excellent position for expansion in 2010 and beyond.

I would like to thank all my fellow staff and directors for
their unity in the face of such difficult circumstances during the year
and for accepting and executing some difficult decisions in order
to adjust to the changing business environment.

To all our valued customers and suppliers; thank you for
your support, understanding and partnership during the year. We
all endured similar challenges but worked together to face and
overcome them.

I would like to express by gratitude to you our
shareholders for believing that Hana could and would
come through these difficult times both stronger and in
better hedlth. | believe the challenges of 2009 have been extremely
useful in repositioning our company and preparing us for

further growth which | am confident we shall continue to achieve.
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HANA Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Lid.

The sales revenue for year 2009 was weak as anticipated,
especially in the first half of the year. Continuing from Q4 2008,
(as aresult of the large drop in automotive sales world-wide), the
demand for small light emitting dioes “LEDs", primarily used for
automotive brake and indicator lights dropped significantly.

Demand for the other products was less impacted by
the recession, as the LED diisplay business had stable sales revenue
which was not materially different from 2008. The fiber optic high
speed devices for wireless LAN performed well, achieving higher
sales revenue for the group with demand increasing as our major
customer increased their market share.

We instituted major cost reduction projects in Q4 2008
and Q1 2009 which were successful in reducing the divisions cost
structure to bring it in line with the reduced sales revenue forecast.

LEAN manufacturing projects have been successfully
implemented in 2009 which enabled significant improvement in
products costs and also helped to reduce labor and overhead
expenses.

The CPG division will continue focus on new customers
for the fiber optic business which looks very positive for the year
2010 and we will also continue to drive more LEAN manufacturing
projects fo gain further productivity improvement. As we prepare
for the expiry of our factory lease in 2014, some of our customers
will relocate their products to other locations which will gradually
reduce CPG division’s sales revenue. Despite this we believe we
can continue to down size and contribute to the group’s bottom

line in the future.

Mr. Issra Sivakul

Vice President and General Manager
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For Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya), 2009 was a year
of constant change. The year started slowly with January 2009
loading less than 50% of the prior year which necessitated a
reduction in our workforce and a shortened work week. Business
started to recover late in the quarter and this frend continued
throughout @2 and Q3. By the end of Q3 2009 we were at
business levels exceeding those of 2008, and Q4 loadings were
at record levels in terms of unit volumes.

In July, we had a management change in Hana
Semiconductor (AYT) whereby Sanjay Mitra, VP & GM, relocated
to the U.S. to assume responsibility for U.S. Sales and Marketing
and was replaced by myself, Bruce Stromstad as VP & GM.

Strong customer loadings in Q3 and forecasted activity
levels for @4 2009 and 2010 required an investment in additional
manufacturing capacity. This capacity increase was installed
by year end and the company is now well positioned to meet
our 2010 customer demand. Our headcount levels have now
increased accordingly and now exceed 3,000 people (up
from 2,300 in Q1 2009). The number of employees is now similar
to the peak headcount previously achieved in Q3 2008,
illustrating the extent of the rebound in demand.

Nearly all of the demand for increased capacity is for
leadless packages which offer our customers the advantage
of small size, high performance, and low cost. In addition fo
leadless packages, we have developed several exciting new
packages including System-In-Package, copper clip power
packages, and a family of clear leadless packages.

Moving forward into 2010, we face strong demand for
our services and as we now have the capacity in place to
meet this growing demand we are confident that in 2010 will

shall see good growth.

Mr. Bruce Stromstad
Vice President & General Manager
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Despite the worldwide economic tsunami,
Hana Microelectronics division in Lamphun, Thailand, “Hana LPN”
was able to achieve a record year in both revenue and
profitability. Whilst so many companies around us suffered
lay-offs and cut backs, Hana LPN was able to increase our
work load, improve productivity and gain market share by
outperforming the competition and winning even greater
customer satisfaction.

In 2009, we received several quality awards
from our customers. These were as a result of our intemal
fraining programs for quality and customer service. Our
employee’s commitmentto “strong teamwork” and “ownership”
concepts also enabled us to win the “Diamond Award” for
the Quality Control Circle "QCC” organized by the Technology
Promotion Association (Thailand-Japan).

In 2010 we anticipate an improvement in the
global economy. Due fo our strong operational performance
in 2009, Hana LPN is winning more market share and gaining
additional orders from our diverse customer base; in particular
the telecommunication, medical and computer sectors. This
is expected to spearhead our growth in 2010 which will require
further expansion of our factory floor space in the near future.

We look forward to 2010 and | would like to express
my sincere gratitude to all Hana LPN employees for their
whole-hearted effort to achieve a record year in 2009 despite

the severe economic challenges encountered during the year.

Mr. Wing Keung Chow

Vice President and General Manager
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2009 was indeed a very difficult and challenging year
for Hana Microelectronics Jiaxing. The impact of the global
recession was even more severe than we had expected
at the end of 2008, resulting in the demand from our major
customers declining by nearly 30% in 2009.

| would particularly like to extend my gratitude to
all of our employees for their understanding, support and
cooperation in a series of cost cutting programs we had to
undertake at the beginning of the year. Thanks to our prompt
response fo the situation, Hana Jiaxing Micro Division remained
operationally profitable on a consistent basis throughout 2009.

Our business grew every quarter during the year ending
with a strong Q4 2009 which actually outpaced Q4 2008 in terms
of the sales revenue, with the demand from our automotive
customers being particularly strong in the second half of the
year.

Encouragingly Hana Jiaxing was able to capture
additional market share from our long term customer base and in
addition also added new customers; notably for electric
bicycles, medical devices and industrial sensors. With the
global economy expected to improve in 2010 we are
confident that we shall see renewed growth both from
existing and new accounts.

Our focus in 2010 will be on product quality
improvement, technical capability upgrades and customer service
enhancement. New product introduction speed and
manufacturing cost improvement will be additional areas of focus,

in order to stay competitive and enhance the bottom line.

Mr. Steven Lee
Executive Vice President and General Manger
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The start of 2009 kicked off with very weak demand
amidst the global economic crisis. Coming from a similar
situation at the end of 2008, we were well prepared and had
already embarked on an aggressive down sizing program to
adjust to the reduced demand. Nevertheless, the first half was
still very difficult. Even with our Continuous Improvement Program
which was successful in significantly reducing our manufacturing
costs it wasn’t until the end of Q3 2009 that volumes began to
increase to the point where we could achieve breakeven.

An Employee Recognition program, torecognize employee’s
superior effort in their work, has been implemented and received
very positive feedback and support from all levels. A NPl (New
Product Infroduction), and ‘mistake proofing’ program was
implemented which has brought our service to a higher level
of customer satisfaction. QIC (Quality Improvement Cells), which
uses a team work approach, QCC (Quality Control Circle) and
the 53 housekeeping are now operating and contributed to
a productivity improvement of over 25% in the last quarter.

2010 will be another challenging year for Hana JX but
we are confident of revenue growth and together with our
new package implementation we expect a better year ahead.
The MSOP and QFN packages are two new packages recently
introduced and we expect a high level of demand for these

packages in 2010 providing additional growth.

Mr. Yingsak Jenratha
Vice President and General Manager
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2009 was a difficult year for HMT in part due to
the worldwide economic decline that began in late 2008.
Overall revenue was down 20% for the year, but was down
40% for the first quarter. Extensive cost-cutting measures
were put in place to counteract this decrease. Revenue from
radio-frequency identification (RFID) business was down 10%
from 2008. Microdisplay-related revenue dropped for the first
time in 4 years, and was down 25% for the year.

In 2009 HMT’s RFID manufacturing services had
In the first half

of 2009 there was very little volume, but the limited activity

two distinctively different halves of the year.

was in high-margin, high-priced units for pharmaceutical and
item-level tagging. In the second half of the year HMT ran at
increased capacity for the majority of the last 2 quarters with a
healthy combination of low and high-margin products. HMT's
RFID tire tag business actually decreased throughout the year
and forecasts for this market are down for 2010.

The Microdisplay-related business for HMT strengthened
throughout the year. HMT had narrowed its focus in 2008, and
this focus continued in 2009. The areas of adaptive optics,
telecom devices, and mini-projectors have all grown only slightly
in 2009, but the number of customers is up in all areas as are
the length of their forecasts extending well info 2010.

Despite the struggles through the first half of 2009, HMT
made adjustments and performed well financially in the second
half of the year. HMT is positioned well for 2010 with a strong
customer base and diverse manufacturing options both in Ohio
and its sister factory in Ayutthaya. HMT looks forward to growing

with its customers through 2010 and for years fo come.

Mr. John Erdman
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Board of Directors

Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn Mr. Richard David Han Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui
Chairman of the Board, Executive Vice Chairman & President & Chief Operating Officer
Independent Director Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi  Mr. Martin Enno Hom

Executive Director & Audit Committee, Audit Committee,

Chief Financial Officer Independent Director Independent Director
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Management Team

1. Mr. Issra Sivakul
Vice President and General Manager
2. Ms. Achara Chaicharncheep
Senior Accounting Manager
3. Mr. Somchai Chantrachirathumrong
Corporate Management Information
System (MIS) Director

1. Ms. Praphaphun Naradilok
Senior Human Resources Manager
2. Mrs. Saowanee Rachatakarn
Senior Financial Controller
3. Ms. Areenee Kittisupornpong
Senior Management Information
System (MIS) Manager
4. Mr. Bruce Stromstad
Vice President & General Manager
5. Mrs. Tongsuk Vongsukharutai
Supply Chain Management Director
6. Ms. Samantha Kulasinghe
Senior Production Planning and Control
Manager

Bangkok

4. Mr. Sakdi Arkomthon
Senior Operations Support Manager

5. Mrs. Watcharaporn Jirathanakun
Operations Director

6. Mrs. Puntipa Tanthana
Corporate Manufacturing Administration
Director

7. Ms. Jirapa Kongmanee
Senior Internal Audit Manager
8. Mr. Viruch Jeivisarn
Senior Corporate Human Resources Manager

Ayutthaya

. Ms. Tappawong Na Tarang

Senior Customer Service Manager

. Mr. Vicente T. Lau Jr.

Senior Quality & Reliability Assurance
Manager

. Mr. Ekachai Yartpakdee

Senior IC-Front of Line Manufacturing
Manager

. Mr. Punsak Eammongkolchai

Standard IC Front of line Operations
Director

. Mr. Pimol Thanakijmthorn

Customer Specific Operations (CSO)
Manufacturing Director
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Mr. Pongsak Klongjai

Senior Manufacturing Manager
Mr. Supakit Tantara

Process Engineering and Senior New
Project Investment (NPI) Manager
Mr. Reynaldo N. San Agustin
Sales & Marketing Director

Mr. Joseph D. Caliston

Senior Test Engineering Manager
M:r. Jesus Manila Monreal
IC-End of Line Operations /
Training Director

Mr. Dumrongpoal Virojtum
Senior Facility Manager

Mr. Chaweng Tantiyaphorn
Test Operations Director
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Management Team

1. Mr. Steven Spittal
Business Development Director
2. Mr. Chanarong Disyamal
Operations Director
3. Mr. Fok Hong Pun
Operations Director
4. Mr. Wing Keung Chow
Vice President & General Manager
5. Ms. Juthamard Trerattanawongse
Finance Manager
6. Mr. Jirasak Maleekaew
Material Control & Logistics Director
7. Mr. Wichai Sukprasertkul
Operations Director

Lamphun

8. Mr. Christian Cron
Marketing & Customer Service Director

9. Mr. Alak Punkabutra 15.

Senior Business Development

& Technology Manager 16.

10. Mr. Thanawat Pasikthep
Administration Manager

11. Mr. Somjai Namwongsa 17.

Training & Development Manager

12. Mr. Chalermpon Narksang 18.

Senior Customer Service Manager

13. Mr. Tosaporn Musikcharoen 19.

Senior Industrial Engineering & Facility
Manager

14. Mr. Sathit Umpai

Senior Operations Manager

Mr. Sa-ard Ngamkajang

Senior Test Engineering Manager

Mr. Thawatchai Kumprasert

Management Information System (MIS)
Manager

Mr. Anawat Aroonsawat

Senior Production & Material Control Manager
Mr. Wong Wan Wah Vincent

Senior Supply Chain Management Manager
Mr. Seree Nuanim

Senior Quality Reliability Assurance Manager

1. Ms. Jane Li
Senior Finance Manager
2. Mr. Andy Shen
Micro Operations Director
3. Mr. Steven Lee
Vice President & General Manager
(Microelectronics Operations)
4. Mr. Dirrick Ong
Business Development & Technology Director

JiaXing Microelectronics

5. Ms. Lucy Guo
General Administration Manager
6. Mr. York Li
Senior Manufacturing Support Manager
7. Mr. Steven Chua
Senior Engineering Manager
8. Mr. Gordon Gu
Facility Manager
9. Mr. Felix Zheng
Senior Quality Assurance (QA) Manager

10. Mr. Martin Chen
Senior New Project Investment
(NPI) Manager
11. Mr. Peter Xu
Senior Management Information
System (MIS) Manager
12. Mr. Yu Bing
Senior Operations Manager
13. Mr. SW Lum
Senior Purchasing Manager
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Management Team

1. Mr. David Zhu
Supply Chain Management Director
2. Mr. Yingsak Jenratha
Vice President & General Manager
(IC Operations)
. Mr. Dirrick Ong
Business Development & Technology
Director
4. Mr. Charles Yang
Senior Process Control & Development
Manager
5. Mr. Richard Pang
Senior Technical Support, Automation
and Mechanization Manager
6. Mr. Binghui Xi
Process & Maintenance Engineering

et b JiaXing IC

Test Engineering Manager
8. Mr. Perry Zhang

New Project Investment (NPI) Engineeing Manager
9. Mr. Raymond Ng

Senior Manufacturing Manager

w

1. Ms. Karrie O’ Neill
Account Manager
2. Mr. Sanjay Mitra
President - U.S. Sales and Marketing
3. Mrs. Malee Lowchareonkul
Sales Manager
4. Mr. BK Ng
Senior Manager Strategic Projects and
Technical Support
5. Mr. Steve Hanway
Director of Business Development
6. Ms. Michelle Nguyen
Account Manager
7. Mr. Thang Bui
Director of Business Development

1. Mr. Edward M. Stiles Il

Vice President of Product Development
2. Dr. John H. Erdmann

President and Chief Executive Officer
3. Mr. D. Scott Worthington

Vice President of Manufacturing
4. Mr. Paul R. Brown, Jr.

Vice President of Business Development
5. Ms. Susan A. Nilsen

Financial Controller

HANA Microdisplay

HANA Microelectronics Inc.
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HANA Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd.

. | . Omac Sales Lid. Hana Microelectronics, Inc. Hana Semiconductor
Hana Microelectronics Purchasing / HK Investments Co. Ltd. (BKK) Co, Ltd.
Trading / BVI 160% 100% Holding / BBI 100% CPG /T <:|I-
42%

Hana Semiconductor  Hana Microelectronics Hana Microelectronics, | Hana Microdisplay Hana Semiconductor

International Ltd. Enterprises Co., Ltd. Inc. Technologies, Inc.” (Ayutthaya) Co, Lid.
Trading / BVI 100% Investment / BVl 100% Marketing / US 100% LCoS / RFID / C '/ Thai
us 100%

Hana Microelectronics Hana Macao Commercial
(JiaXing) Co., Ltd. Offshore Limited
Manufacturing / China 100% Agency / Macao 100%
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The board of directors consists of six directors whom
three of them are independent directors. The board may
review and determine the size of the board that is most
effective in relation to future operations.
In addition to the Company’s Articles of Association, the
board of directors shall have the following responsibilities and
duties in line with the best practices of corporate governance.
1. Approve the Company’s vision and mission and the
business plan

2. Review the performance of CEO and ensure that
Executive Committee carries out the policy and
day-to-day operation of the Company properly

3. Ensure that the internal control system and risk
management are sufficiently maintained and monitored

4. Oversee the conflict of interest that might be taking
place to be in line with the present regulations

5. Review and approve audited financial statement
Oversee the accurate and timely disclosure of
inform ation to the public

7. Ensure that members of the board shall not use
inside information for personal benefits.

In conducting the business of the company, a director
and an executive shall perform his duty with responsibility, due
care and loyalty, and shall comply with all laws, the objectives,
the Articles of Association of the Company, the resolutions of
the board of directors and the resolutions of the shareholders’
meeting.

Board Committees:

The board currently has four committees - Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities.

The Executive Committee:
Structure: The Committee currently comprises of three members.
Term: There is no term limit,

Name Position

Mr. Richard David Han Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui  Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Terrence Philip Weir Chief Financial Officer
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Authorities and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

Members:

1. Perform and manage the company’s business to comply
with the policies, mission and business plans as determined
by the board of directors

2. Determine budget and the management’s authorities of
the company

3. Monitor and follow up the operation of the company’s
policies to ensure its efficiency

4. Monitor and follow up the performance of the company
fo ensure its compliance with the business plan

5. Consider the large investment projects of the company
such as a joint venture, a construction of new plant etc.
and any significant transaction shall be proposed to the
board for approval

6. Perform other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors

Audit Committee:

Structure: The Audit Committee was formally establishe since
September 10, 1999. The Committee consists entirely of non-
executive directors, who are independent from Hana operations
and free from any relationship that might in the opinion of the
board of directors to be construed as a conflict of interest.

Term: The Chairman and members are appointed for an initial
term of two years.

Name Position
Mr. Bancha Tarmprakorn Chairman
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi ~ Member
Mr. Martin Enno Horn Member

Authorities and responsibilities of the Audit Committee:

1. Oversee financial reporting process and the disclosure
of financial information to ensure accuracy, sufficiency
and creditability, by coordinating with the external
auditors and the management responsible for preparing
the quarterly and yearly financial reports

2. Review the Company’s Internal Control System and
Internal Audit System to ensure that they are suitable and
efficient, to determine an Infernal Audit unit’s indepen
dence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer
and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit

3. Review the Company’s compliance with the Law
on Securities and Exchange, the Stock Exchange of
Thailand'’s regulations, and the laws relating to the
Company’s business

4. Consider, select and nominate an independent person
to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such
person’s remuneration, as well as fo aftend a non-
management meeting with an auditor at least once a year

HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED .I 9
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5. Review the connected transactions, or the transactions
that may lead to conflicts of interests, o ensure that they
are in compliance with the laws and the Stock Exchange’s
regulations, and are reasonable and for the highest
benefit of the Company

6. Prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual
report, an Audit Committee’s report which must be
signed by the Audit Committee’s Chairman

7. Consider other duties as defined by the board of directors
In its performance of duties, if it is found or suspected
that there is a fransaction or any of the following
acts which may materially affect the Company’s
financial condition and operating results, the Audit
Committee shall report it to the Board of Directors for
rectification within the period of time that the Audit
Committee thinks fit. If the Company’s board of
directors or management fails to make a rectification
within the period of time under the first paragraph, any
Audit Committee Member may report on the transaction
or act under the first paragraph to the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET).

Nomination Committee:

Structure: The Nomination Committee was established in
November 2004. It consists of two independent directors and
one executive director. The Committee will at all time consist
of a majority of independent non-executive directors.

Term: The Chairman and members are appointed for the
term of two years.

Name Position
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi ~ Chairman
Mr. Martin Enno Horn Member
Mr. Richard David Han Member

Authorities and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee:

1. Toensure aformal and transparent procedure for the appointments
of new directors and key executives to the board

2. To make recommendations to the board on the
independence of any existing or proposed non-executive
director

3. To review annudlly the size and composition of the board
and fo recommend any proposed changes to the board

Risk Management Committee:

The board of directors has appointed the Risk
Management Committee and review the adequacy of the risk
management system at least annually, or when necessary. The
board also pays attention to early warning signs and unusual
transactions reported by the Risk Management Committee.:
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Board of Directors
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Annual General

Audit Committee
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n/o n/o 1
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Appointment of Director

The board shall consist of directors who exercise
sound business judgment and process the business expertise,
knowledge, professional experiences, and have high standard
of integrity and are ready to exercise their duties. At least one
director has a financial background for membership of the Audit
Committee. In addition, the director shall not be aperson who violates any
regulations stipulated by the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Company
Articles of Association. The board shall consider the proposal for
appointment from the Nomination Committee before recommend
to the shareholders.

The newly appointed director shall get the orientation
regarding the company’s business, duties and responsibilities of
directors. The brief review shall be led by the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer or his appointee. All other necessary information shall be
given by the company secretary.

Service on Other Boards

In order to give proper attention and contribution to the assigned
responsibilities, the board believes that directors including CEO should limit
their services to sit on other boards not more than five boards of publicly
fraded companies in addition to Hana and its associate companies.

CEO and Board Evaluation

On an annual basis, the performance of CEO is
evaluated by the independent directors whilst the board shall
conduct a self-evaluation of ifs performance according fo the criteria
being set. All directors are free to make suggestions to improve the board’s
performance.

Succession Plan

The board shall ensure having nomination systematic
for the proper candidate to replace significant director and
executive position level suitably and in line with the succession
planning policy. The Nomination Committee is appointed to propose the
appointmentsofnew directorsandkey executives (Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer) to the board by considering
for the proper candidate person both from intemal and extemal candidates.

Corporate Secretary fo the Board

The corporate secretary is the primary liaison
between the corporation’s directors and management. The board has
formally appointed the corporate secretary on 11 August 2008 to carry
out the duties and responsibilities according to Section 89/15 of
Securities and Exchange Act No. 4 B.E. 2551. The corporate secretary shall
perform duties with care and responsibility and in good faith as well as
in compliance with alllaws, the objectives, the articles of association of
the company, and the resolutions of the board of directors and the
shareholders” meeting.
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HANA Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd.
Register No. PLC 0107536000773
10/4 Moo 3, Vibhavadi-Rangsit Road,
Kwang Talad Bangkhen, Khet Laksi,
Bangkok 10210, Thailand
Tel. 02-551-1297, 02-521-4935-9
Fax: 02-551-1299, 02-552-4906

Number and Type of Share Issued
Ordinary shares: 830,474,960 shares
Treasury shares: 25,596,100 shares
Total voting shares: 804,878,860 shares
(as of 31 December 2009)

Nature of Business

Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
mainly involve a single industry segment in electronic component
and mainly carried on in the geographic area in Thailand,

Hong Kong, USA and China.

Business classification policy

The Group'sbusiness operations are primarity Microelectronics
the assembly of components, sub-assemblies and small electronic
finished products. The major product groups are Printed Circuit Board
Assembly “PCBA” Integrated Circuit “IC" Assembly and Test, Light
Emitting Diodes “LED” Assembly and Liquid Crystal on Silicon “LCoS”
Assembly with factories in Thailand, China and USA.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy to pay shareholders is 30-100%
of appropriated eamings of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The dividend policy of the subsidiaries to pay the Company is
0-100% of appropriated eamings.
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TAsvasIvs19lQ / Revenue Structure

(Unit: Million Baht)

HARSIUN stiuaulag % NMINDYULRILTEN 2550 2551 2552
PRODUCT COMPANY % OF HOLDING 2007 2008 2009
REVENUE % REVENUE % REVENUE %
IC HS - AYT & HM - JX 100% 5,280 34 5,046 33 4,484 33
CPG HS - BKK 100% 1.831 12 1,626 11 1,106 8
PCBA HM - LPN & HM - JX 100% 8.408 54 8.308 55 7.766 58
MICRODISPLAY HMT - USA 100% 116 1 125 1 102 1
TOTAL 15,635 100 15,1056 100 13,458 100
HM - LPN =  Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd. HM -JX = Hana Microelectronics (JiaXing) Co., Ltd.
HS - BKK = Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd. HMT = Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc.
HS - AYT = Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd.

InsvaswNsiioAu I1la:N1s¥aNs /Shareholding Structure and Management
dneviuseive deys w Tullnayanzideuaign w 547117 Sunmw 2552 / Major Shareholders as of the lotest dlosing
registration book on 17 March 2009

wilaviu: iuanidny / Type of Shares: Ordinary shares

d171/No. A9 / Name FIUIIU / No. of Share (%)
1. OMAC (HK) LIMITED, 151 Tauim 49117, RAINBOW JOY LIMITED 253,419,360 30.52
2. STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY FOR LONDON 100,243,900 12.07
3. HSBC PRIVATE BANK (SUISSE) SA 38,810,400 4.67
4, BNP PARAIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES LUXEMBOURG 28,017,900 3.37
5. FORTIS GLOBAL CUSTODY SERVICES N.V. 24,501,300 2.95
6. N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-RBS AS DEP FOR FS 24,100,500 2.90
7. SOMERS (U.K.) LIMITED 20,788,631 2.50
8. HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 14,231,100 1.71
9. THE BANK OF NEW YORK (NOMINEES) LIMITED 13,281,574 1.60
10. STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY FOR AUSTRALIA 10,854,700 1.30

Ve @A (1) ABEDRMUNAUIALITUALLINGY 258 Wi e, vAnninduazaaiavanninduialssmalne @i 4) w.a. 2551

Remark: No. (1) is the related companies under Section 258 of the Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4) B.E. 2551
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Subsidiary Company

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited
10/4 Moo 3, Vibhavadi-Rangsit Rd., Kwang
Talad Bangkhen, Khet Laksi, Bangkok 10210

Tel: (02) 551-1297 Fax: (02) 551-1299

Type of business: Electronics

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited
100 Moo 1,T.Bon Lone, A Bongpain, Ayutthaya 13160
Tel: (035) 350170-7 Fax: (035) 350805-6

Type of business: Electronics

Hana Microglectronics Infemational Company Linnited
P.O. Box 71, Craigmuir Chambers, Road Town,
Tortola, Brifish Virgin Islands

Type of business: Trading products

Hona Microslectronics Investment Company Limited
P.O. Box 71, Craigmuir Chambers, Road Town,
Torfola, British Virgin Islkands

Type of business: Investment

Omac Sales Limited

16E, On Fook Industrial Building, 41-45 Kwai Fung
Crescent, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

Type of business: Purchasing and Marketing
Hana Technologies Group Limited

Moaples and Calder, Attorneys-at-Law, Ugland
House, P.O. Box 309, George Town, Cayman,

Cayman Islands, British West Indies

Type of business: Investment

References

External auditors:

Emst & Young office, Ltd.

No. of Shores
mmuwuw
‘LI‘i“]:WlE]ﬂﬂEI

99,999,994

69,999,993

99.999

33rd Fl., Lake Rachada Office Complex,
193/136-137 New Rachadapisek Road,

Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Tel.: 02-264-0777 Fax: 02-264-0790

Solicitors:

Damrongtham Law Office

63 Soi 8 (Soi Preeda),

Sukhumvit Road, Bangkok 10110 Thailand
Tel.: 02-255-2550-2, 02-653-1133-4
Fax: 02-653-1135, 02-253-3427

Share Registrar:

Thailand Securities Depository Co. Ltd.

RegisTered Shores
mu’zuwu‘w
@ﬂVluL‘l.IElu

1,000,000,000

1,200,000,000

100,000

4th, 7th-8th Fl., Stock Exchange of Thailand Bldg.,

62 Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110 Thailand
Tel.: 02-229-2800 Fox: 02-359-1259
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The long-term success of a company is largely
determined by the support we earn from our customers,
investors, employees, business partners, and local community.
To strengthen stakeholders’ confidence, Hana is committed
to good corporate governance by compliance with the best
practices of corporate govemnance wherever possible and
practical for the company. The corporate governance policy,
which is published on the company’s website, provides the
guidelines under which the board of directors operates. We
will continue to seek improvements to our solid foundation in
good corporate govermnance.

A compliance program is an important element in the
corporate governance. In 2009, Hana complied with good

corporate governance principles as follows.

1. Rights of Shareholders

Hana recognizes the importance of shareholders’ rights
and treats all shareholders equitably, fairly and in line with
relevant laws. All shareholders have the equal rights for each
class of shares to receive the dividend payment, to buy, sell
and transfer shares including the right to access or obtain the
company’s information disclosed to shareholders and the public.
All shareholders have the right fo attend the shareholders’ meetings
and are eligible to vote in accordance with the voting rights
of the respective share class of their share holdings. There
are no actions that violate the right of shareholders, such
as not changing or adding agenda items without notifying
shareholders in advanceor which limitthe accessto the company’s
information that is released o public. The company also assists
shareholders beyond what is required by laws covering their
rights, such as arranging company visits so that shareholders
or interested persons can have the opportunity to understand

more about the company and our operations.

To encourage shareholders to exercise their rights in shareholders’
meeting, the company takes actions as follows.
Before the meeting day:

The company holds the annual general meeting
of shareholders within 4 months after financial year ends.
In 2009, the company held the Meeting on 30 April 2009
at 2:.00 P.M. at the hotel close to Headquarters office. The
company arranged with the Thailand Securities Depository
Co., Ltd. or “TSD” which is the company’s securities deposit
registrar send the notice of shareholders’ meeting 14 days

prior to the meeting date in order to provide sufficient time
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for shareholders to review the agenda. The notice of meeting
expressly indicated the matters to be tabled at the meeting,
whether for acknowledgement, approval or consideration,
including the board’s opinion on each agenda. Other
supporting information and documents were also attached
to the notice. In addition to the direct delivery, the notice
of meeting was made available to the shareholders through
the company’s website (http://www.hanagroup.com) in
advance and the notice of meeting was published through
“ELCID” in both Thai and English
versions, which were the same as the original notice mailed

SET’s information system or

to shareholders.

On the meeting day:

The quorum, voting procedures and voting count method
are clearly advised to the meeting prior to the discussion
of the agenda items. In regards to the annual general
meeting conducted in 2009, 6 out of 6 directors (100%)
attended the meeting. Those key directors were the Chairman of
the Board and Audit Committee, Chief Executive Officer, and the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The Chief Financial
Officer and external auditor also attended the meeting so that
they could listen to shareholders’ opinions or suggestions and
also answer any questions.

The board of directors allows shareholders to elect each
director eligible for election on individual basis. The ballot is
used and kept for evidence and verification. Shareholders are
given the opportunity to raise questions, recommendations as
well as provide their opinions on the company’s performance

or other concerns on an equitable basis.

After the meeting day:

The meeting minutes recording the course of the
meeting and all issues discussed at the meeting, the
results of shareholder voting on each agenda and the
decisions made by the meeting are made available within the
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appropriate time to the shareholders. The minutes of the
annual general meeting in 2009 was posted fo the company’s
website within the following business day after the meeting
and at the same time sent o the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
If shareholders have any inquiries or comments on the minutes,
they can contact to the corporate secretary. The minutes are
maintained at the Company’s head office.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

Hana pays special attention to the interest of the
Company’s owners - the shareholders. Equitable treatment is
given with fairness to all categories of shareholders as follows.

Treat all class equally

The company ensures fair treatment of shareholders
irespective of the size of each of their share holdings.
Foreign shareholders and owners of small stakes (minority
shareholders) are treated equally. All of shareholders, in
respect of each class of shares, are entitled to the same dividend
payments, and have equal rights in the event of share capital
increases. The company’s shareholder meetings are open fo all
shareholders, and all shares of the same class have the same
voting rights. Voting at the annual shareholders’ meeting is
done by the principle of one share, one vote. Shareholders,
who cannot attend the shareholders” meeting, can authorize
our independent directors on their behalf to attend the meeting
and vote by using the proxy forms. Shareholders are allowed
to propose candidates for election to the board and propose
items for the agenda of annual general meeting in advance.
The company’s annual general meeting of shareholders
conducted in 2009 offered the opportunity for shareholders to add
items to the agenda and resolutions for the meeting including to
propose candidates fo be elected as directors. Shareholders
could, (during the period from October - December 2008),
submit proposals for agenda items for the annual shareholders
meeting to the board of directors. The procedures and criteria
to nominate the director to the board and propose items
for the agenda for the annual general meeting have been
posted to the company’s website. However, in 2009 there
were no shareholder proposals sent to the board of directors for
consideration. The matters discussed in the general meeting of
shareholders were in sequence as given in the invitation letter.

Prohibit insider trading and abusive self-dealing

The company has the policy to prevent directors and
executives from taking advantage of inside information, from
dishonest dealing for themselves and their related parties.

Insider trading is prohibited. Hana has established a system

to prevent the use of inside information for personal benefits

as follows.

e Communicate the compliance of the policy of Business
Code of Conduct of the board of directors, executives and
employees. The directors and executives are required fo
sign on acknowledgement of the policy on an annual basis.

¢ Inform the board of directors and executive by a circular
letter that those who may gain inside information should
avoid trading the Company’s securities for the period of
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one month before the Company announces its financial
statements to the public and at least 24 hours after the
information is widely spread out to the public.
¢ The shareholding status has been confirmed with individual
director and executive and report to the Board on a monthly
basis.
The directors and executives of the company have
complied with this policy strictly. There was no violation of the
trading shares during the prohibited period in 2009.

Enforce material interest (Conflict of Interest)

The board of directors has established the policy and
procedure for directors and executives to report on conflict of
interest to ensure that they are abided by their fiduciary duties
in the way that they must not have interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in the matter under their decision. Directors and
executives are required fo disclose any material infterest in
fransactions or matters affecting the corporation through the
established form approved by the board of directors, where
those directors and executives shall be excluded from decision
making involving fransactions in which they have interests
or are connected. The corporate secretary is responsible for
receiving reports from directors and executives who disclose
their interests and those of their related parties to the chairman
and the chairman of Audit Committee. In 2009, the company
required all directors and executives to disclose their conflict
of interest and those of their related parties to the board
for review and consideration. However, there was no any
non-compliance case regarding related party transaction.

3. Roles of Stakeholders

Hana recognizes the rights of stakeholders. The company
is dedicated to the achievement of equality of opportunity
for all of its employees. All employees will be employed solely
according fo their ability to meet the position requirements.
A Career Path Development Program is provided to selected
employees for leamning and development opportunities to
grow. The company has provided various welfare programs
for employees such as provident funds, health benefits,
children educational assistance for lower-pay employees,
meal allowance, group life insurance, employee long service
award program, etc.
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Hana places the highest value on our customers. The
company aims to meet or exceed our customers’ expectation
for product quality, delivery, reliability, and competitive prices.
There is a Customer Service Department available for dealing
with customers and to monitor progress of our commitments.

Hana promotes fair and open competition and aims at
developing and securing long term relationship with suppliers and
contractors. Material, product and service purchases will be
considered for the quality of materials, products and services
in accordance with the respective product requirements. The
company abides by its obligations to all creditors. The board
of directors, management and employees are expected to
exercise diligence in their duties with all business partners
including creditors. The company conducts business fairly and
shall not deceive, discredit or use unethical means to gain
advantage from the company’s business competitors.

The company attempts to achieve growth in earnings for
shareholders over the long term. Board members and executive
management shall be qualified for their positions and have a
clear understanding of their roles in corporate govemnance and
exercise sound business judgment in the best interest of the
company and shareholders. Our treatment toward shareholders
shall comply with the good corporate governance principles
for the right and equitable freatment of all shareholders. The
disclosures shall be made on a consistent basis, completely
and fruthfully in regards to the status of the company, its
operating results, financial standing, accounts and other
reports. The company has followed the best practices in
conducting the annual ordinary general meeting of shareholders.
In 2009, the company was rated “excellent” in the assessment
of the annual general meetings of shareholders by the Office
of the SEC and the Thai Investors Association.

We have the Safety, Occupation Health, Environmetal
and Social Policies. The policies are aimed to preserve
the environment, care for our employees and on matters
of safety, occupational health and adhere to social
responsibiity with respect to the business. The company commits to
integrate environmentally safe practices into all aspects of our
daily activities by having effective programs to minimize
environmental impact through conservation of resources
and materials, administering and establishing responsible
methods for the use and disposal of hazardous substances
to prevent pollution, nurturing our environment through
continuous improvements in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulation. We also ensure the compliance with our
customers’ specifications concermning to safety, occupation health,
environment, including social and labor accountability. In
2009, we participated in the Clean Technology Program with
Chiangmai University to support students in applying clean technologies
for energy saving. As a result, the company succesfully
made the electrical saving for our cooling tfower system
approximately 500,000 Baht per year. In addition, the company
completely met the environmental standards, complying with
laws, regulations and ISO standard to control air pollution and
waste water in the factory.
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Corporate Affairs

Hana provides channels for stakeholders
to communicate any concerns about illegal or any
complaints regarding to activities or conduct of the company
or any of its staff or business partners relating to the company.
Stakeholders canreport such complaint orconcemin good faith directty
to the Audit Committee of the board of directors. The
procedure for handling complaints (Whistleblower Policy) has been
established and published in the company’s website. In addition,
the suggestion/compliant box is available at each Hana location to
receive anonymous and confidential complaints  from employees
to report any suspected fraud, ilegal conduct or any suggestion fo
the independent director.

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The company ensures timely disclosure of all
material matters and all relevant information is reported to the
Stock Exchange of Thailand in accordance with the disclosure
requirements. It is critical to have as much information as can
be available so that confinuous evaluation of investment
performance may be conducted. The company wil make the
effort to disclose information broadly and proactively through
channels of communication that dllow equal access to market
participants. New information that is likely to materially influence
the valuation of the company’s shares shall be disclosed to the
market immediately through the SET's system and the Company’s
website.  In 2009, there was no violation that Hana breached the
disclosure rules and regulations. The financial reports have been
disclosed in a timely manner during the past years.

The company has not set up the Investor Relations
Department, but the company’s executive directors are actively
involved in the role of investor relations on a continuous basis
as the company believes that their ability to deliver confident
and clear presentation is as important a skill as technical and
managerial capabilities. The Corporate Affairs Department is
also available to provide basic information upon request. The
company usually arranges an analyst meeting each quarter to
inform the investor community of the financial result and also
clarify all inquiries from Institutional Investors, Fund Managers
and analysts who attend the meeting. In 2009, the company
conducted analyst meetings four times and participated with
SET’s Opportunity Day program two times to provide information
about the past quarters” performance to the interested persons.
Additionally, company visits by interested analysts are also
welcome and can be arranged by appointment. All investors
can access the company’s financial information through the
SET's Public disclosure system and at the company’s website:
http://www.hanagroup.com, or contact to following person.

B-1ud / Tnsfiwii / nsans /
E-mail address Phone number Fax number
terry@hanabk.th.com 02-5511297 02-5511299
jirapak@hanabk.th.com 02-5511297 02-5511299
ext.117
penpimol_k@hanabk.th.com 02-5511297 02-5511299
ext.226
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5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The board of directors consists of 6 directors which are
3 executive directors and 3 independent directors. The chairman
of the board is not the same person who holds the Chief
Executive Officer position and the chaiman is an independent
director. The board has considered that the current the board
structure is suitable as comparing to authority and responsibility for
managing the company’s business.

Executive Directors are professional and
gaining high experiences in business management.
Directors who are non-executives have relevant
knowledge and are skillful in various fields of business.
All directors devote their time to the serve the board especially
for making decisions significant to the company’s interests. The
board delegates to the executive committee the authority and
responsibility for managing the company’s day-to-day business. The
company’s business is managed under the direction of the
board of directors. The board’s role is to establish policies for
business and management strategies, corporate governance
policy which the board evaluates those policies annually,
the code of conduct, and monitor managerial performance.
The board has approved the separation of duties and
authorization of Executive Committee and management such as
approval limits of day-to-day operational expenses. However,
such authorization shall not include that where the grantee
can approve the transaction of which he or she is a person
who might have any conflict of interest with the company or
its subsidiaries regarding such transaction.

The board of directors gives emphasis on the transparency
of director nomination. The company has the policy to give
the right to shareholders to propose appropriate candidates
for election to the board. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for review of the qualification and performance
of the candidates or those directors who retired by rotation.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 ¢ HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 3 1




7oL

HENMSrNUQIRTeSHE

ANNIFUNSTATUANVUABANANLING TngiansunAnauils

gz aumim nauluTifituun wazanufislauas nsgiia

ATz nELNINMs LN SN AR ENIN T

el AnzNIsUNNe 1SN sy NALAIELNTTUNTE

mmmmﬂgummuimﬂ‘lﬂjmaﬂwmmummmmmwmwamm

U NIsUNIsBATTNMMUAFfinlanauiRautarimunuesan:

m?umiﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬂm%"wéuazmmmwé’nw?wé 1nENITUNTBATZAS

mmmuﬂiiummfﬂq

1)) namuiumuiaaa” 1 mmmmumumamaaﬂLammwm
‘Lumw vsEnlulATa UTEMIIU mammawmwmm
Tauda

2) lUA199AILMUINTIUNTLINNS Wuﬂmumawﬂmm B

JAFuRkuLAaulszaanUIEn e LT it as mumlu

u;dfmmmuwmuammwmaumﬂmma vigaluiiu

andnatlsslaaivadiuliide Wunanlutesndn 1 1

3) ”Lu'ﬁmﬂmé’mﬁuéqu%ﬁw’%maﬂizimﬂﬁy’qmqmma:
NNEeY  TUAIUNITIEIULAZNITUINITAIANITURILTEN
UsEmeas VﬁaqmmaﬁlLﬁlaaﬁﬁaqﬁaﬁﬁ@:da‘LﬁLﬁmmimm
Anuflunase

4y luflugnmaiin ummaium’am%’wmﬁu?mi RRIATERE
‘lmmmaqmuml,a Ustnees mummﬂammwmm
Taudantanatlszlewl LLa.Jlu”lmummmmﬂmﬂuml,mu
fnwadsrlamivasnssunisuazgaviuse vl

o =0

N

2

AUTEYNTTUNTT
Az T TGP EITOPE Y STAPY aunﬁmmﬂwamﬂﬂgum
memmmmmm ANZBUNTTUNTITIaNUA 4 YnABAME
NITUNTLINNG ANIZNITUNITATIRADL ARIZNTTUNNTATIVN LA
ANIZN9TUNNTLATNTALLEES
AUzN9IUNNTANAS LN s UNN Al s T unns1 3 Mg
ﬁm?’%’mﬂi:mmimﬁmﬂﬁtﬂﬂﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁit‘ﬁﬂﬂi:mm Taenssunnaiilsl
“Lﬁ]mﬁuma‘mmammmwmammmummmi guuanifunis
avnzitefiansan wenulduemuAaiiuas Bnmielad
lugieheusvnsdnsaulszguis

ANUTAEananals el

AR ﬂﬁmwu?ﬁwﬁwﬁﬂﬁ%’mms AutuLazAnaulaniu
ganalunailamundnivnuaz mmwaﬂﬂsvimumammamm
ALY ﬂiiummﬂmmmmw aAnAeannInge Wmﬂa"lw,ﬂmmm
mmummumaﬂ?viﬂmu LANMTIaANN AN LA RLT TN IFL
9INAUAZATALATIVBINTTUNNT fianaazdaaliiAnanudnuds
punatlszlaaniiuysem ﬂﬁmma‘ﬁmmmﬁummﬁmﬁuéﬁq
nan" mwimumimmummmﬂ’mLa mumaumaauumma‘m
F18NNTTENINNU fﬁﬂumﬂmmammnuummawmwmm

In 2009, there was no proposal for candidates sent by shareholders
to the Nomination Committee to review. Therefore, the board
considered those directors who retired by rotation and which
the board considers based on their qualification, working
experiences, previous year performances, willingness and
time devoted to the board are suitable to be considered for
re-election.

To ensure that the board includes such directors who
can exercise their best judgment, all independent directors
shall be aoffirmatively determined that such director meets the
requirement established by the Securities Exchange of Commission
(SEC). In particular, an independent director is a director who:
1) hold shares less than 1% of the number of shares eligible

fo vote.

2) is not an executive director, employee, or consultant
who receives remuneration from the company or any
of its subsidiaries, who is also neither a controlling person
of the company or subsidiaries nor a related person at
least for the past one (1) year.

3) has no business relationship or receives benefits directly
or indirectly from both financial and management of the
company, any its subsidiaries, or related person that
deprives such independence.

4) is not an immediate family member of management,
major shareholder of the company and any of its subsidiary,
nor any person who might have a conflict of interest and
is not appointed as a representative to preserve
the interests of the company’ s director and major
shareholders.

Committee

The board of directors has established committees
to carry out various critical responsibilities. There are four
sub-committees: Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, and Risk Management Committee.

The board promotes non-executive directors to have a
separate meeting in absence of management as determined
by the non-executive directors as to encourage more open
discussion without management present.

Conflict of Interests and Related Party Transaction

The fiduciary duty of directors is o exercise their business
judgment to act in a manner that they reasonably believe to
be the best interests of the company. They also are expected
to avoid any action that conflicts with any interest of the
company or that gives the appearance of a conflict. Each
director’s other relationships, including business and family may
occasionally give rise to the perception that the individual has
a material, personal interest on a particular issue involving the
company. [t is the company policy that the Board and Audit
Committee shall determine on a case-by-case basis whether
a conflict of interest actually exists and takes appropriate steps
to identify such potential conflicts.
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Under the Note for, Related Party Transactions, of the
consolidated financial statements discloses relevant detail of
related party tfransactions entered into by the Company and its
subsidiaries. The majority of the related party transactions were
entered into in the normal course of business by the company
and by definition these cannot give rise to a conflict of inferest. The
only transaction involving an associated company is a lease
of land by the company from Omac Limited. The terms of this
lease appear to be arms length normal commercial terms in
view of their being consistent with the lease terms paid for the
same property by Omac Limited o a third party.

Controlling System and Internal Audit

The board of directors is responsible for establishing
and maintaining the internal control system. In 2009, the board
has performed self-assessment to evaluate the internal control
system by applying the control assessment criteria from the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The major parts of organizational
control and environment, risk management, management
control activities, information and communication and monitoring
are measured. There is an infernal audit department which
directly reports fo Audit Committee to monitor the company’s
compliance with the established systems. The board of directors
review the effectiveness of internal controls with the internal
auditors and management. The Risk Management Committee
has been appointed to ensure implementation of the risk
management policy to be monitored and limited overall risks
at an acceptable level.

The board believes that existing internal control systems
are achieving their objectives and that they provide reasonable
assurance concerning the accuracy of financial statements,
the safeguard of assets against loss or unauthorized use, and
the assurance of fransactions that are executed consistent
with company policies and procedures.

Business Ethics

The board of directors attempts to operate its worldwide
business in accordance with the highest ethical standards
and relevant laws. The company expects and requires that
its directors, officers and employees perform their duties with
the highest standards of infegrity in the conduct of business.
Therefore, corporate code of conduct has been written as
the company policy and procedure in order to provide the
general guidance for those in recognizing and resolving ethical
and legal issues while conducting the company’s business. The
company’s extract of the written code of conduct is available
on the company website. All directors and employees are
notified and encouraged to comply with the set codes. The
compliance to the code of conduct is regularly monitored by
senior management. The company shall not folerate any illegal
or unethical acts. Anyone violating the code of conduct will
be disciplined, which may include termination of employment.
Channels of complaint are also opened to all employees.
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Board of Directors’ Meetings

The total number of directors attending the meeting
must be no less than one half of the total number of directors
fo constitute a quorum.  In 2009, the company had four meetings.
The chairman of the board and CEO set the agenda of meetings
of the board. Any director may suggest agenda items and may
raise at meetings other matters that they consider importance
of discussion. Information and data for the board’s understanding
of the business to be discussed at meetings are distributed in
advance of meetings, to the extent practicable. To prepare for
meetings, directors are responsible for reviewing the materials that
are sent to them in advance. If there are additional inquiries,
the directors can contact the company secretary. At the board
meeting, ample fime is scheduled to allow full discussion of
important matters. Management presentations are scheduled
to permit an appropriate portion of board meeting time to be
available for discussion and comments. The minutes of board
of directors meeting are properly made and contain key facts
such as the timing of start and finish, name of directors present
and absent, summary of items of major discussion and resolutions,
the minute taker and certifier. The minutes are maintained at
the company’s head office and cannot be edited without
prior consent of the board approval.

Remuneration for Directors

The company provides the remuneration to the
independent directors while the executive directors
receive the remuneration as the role of employees of the
company. Therefore, the company has not established the
Remuneration Committee as the board considers and reviews
the remuneration of the independent directors by the whole
board. The company provides the remuneration to the
independent directors in forms of meeting allowances and
bonus of which the rates are up fo the responsibilities of the
members. The remuneration for directors has been compared
with the rate of the same industry and the sfructure of the
remuneratfion of the company. The fotal remuneration of
directors had been approved by shareholders from the annual
shareholders’ meeting on 30 April 2009.
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Tl / Individual disclosure of remuneration for the Board is as follows.

‘Ll’]il‘]_lﬂ.l‘]ﬁ NIUNTENT /
Mr. Bancha Tarmprakom
Committee

2. WESNATl WnatnLe @i /
Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi
Committee

aa =3 e
3. UNBIUNTAL L’rJuTu #RTU /
Mr. Martin Enno Horn

4, UNERINSA 1A E /
Mr. Richard David Han
5. WU 19 9 g8l /
Mr. Winson Moong Chu Hui

6. wewaslsus Wal (s /
Mr. Terrence Philip Weir

N97UNTLENNG /
Executive Director

NITUNNTLTVNG /
Executive Director

MNENNR): NeTUNITLTIIT @ - (©) Zmﬂ/mmauuwu?umu:wunmwmuww

1lszaungsuNNg, ﬂi?l.lﬂ’]ﬁ‘ﬂﬁi‘., 19r81UN9TUNTATIAADL /
Chairman of Board, Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit

ﬂi‘ﬁ‘llﬂ’]i‘%ﬁi‘z, NITUNTATIAANL, UTTEIUNTIUNITATIVN /
Independent Director, Audit Committee, Chairman of Nomination

nﬁumﬁm:, NTTUNITATIAADL, NTTUNTATINN /
Independent Director, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee

N9IUNNTLEYNG, NIIUNNTATINN /
Executive Director, Nomination Committee

475,000
255,000 30,000
255,000 30,000

Remark: Executive Directors named 4) - (6) receive the remuneration as the company’s management/employees.
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Remuneration for executives

Basis of key executive remuneration - The Company is to
ensure that executive remuneration enhance our ability to
attract, retain and motivate competent and experience staff.
Remuneration of executives comprises of base salary and
bonus which are basically the same standard as employees.
The performance-based has been recognized for the
legitimate difference in roles, individual contribution, complexity
and responsibility of the position they hold. The remuneration
of executive management is as follows.

RuLAau / Salary

Tutla / Bonus

Lﬁﬂﬂiz‘qu / Board Allowance

974 / Total

APaLILNLAL

ﬂaqmumaauaﬂww Lﬂumuwuwm‘f,mqmmaﬂa”imu
m'auLmuaiNme‘lf«fl,mmmmauwum’m faxilavainensdl
@eain Winne aveen vivansEtuany LsEmaaaunyliludne
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8,484,847

5,018.214

13,503,061

Other Remuneration:

There is a provident fund which is a part of the incentive
programs to offer management and employees a secure
income in the case of death, disability, resignation or retirement.
The company contributes at the rate of 3 - 7.5 percent of
their salaries depending on the length of year service with the
company.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Hana recognizes that our long-term success depends
on our ability to manage operations soundly and efficiently in
an increasingly complex environment, and to make contribution to
society through creating value for our stakeholders. Therefore,
we aim to ensure that the company operates in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner.

Educational Support

We believe that education is a primary factor for
supporting people and communities. In 2009, Hana provides
educational support in following focuses.

Internship Program

We provide the general internship and cooperative
education programs with the collaboration among 15
colleges and universities in Thailand and overseas for example,
Chulalongkorn University, Sirindhorn International Institute
of Technology, Thammasat University, Mahidol University,
Kasetsart University, Suranaree University of Technology., King
Mongkut’s University of Technology North Bangkok, Donmaung
Technical College and City University of Hong Kong, efc. Hana
applies the competency-based approach for the recruitment
and fraining to match students with the job competencies.
We also provide theoretical fraining, hands-on training, technical
competency-based development program and projects
assignments, etc. fo help them gain manufacturing experience,
lean how to apply the theory into the real environment
under the guidance of expertise in the factory and teachers in
the university. Meanwhile, the mentors have the potential
opportunity to exchange technical knowledge with the
students and professors.
Educational subsidy to needy schools

Special condition is given to particular needs in
remote schools where we believe that our support on the
knowledge sources such as computers, classroom supplies and other
necessary items can help students to develop their knowledge and
learning skills relevant to their needs and aspirations. In 2009,
we were able to identify small primary schools which we could
help fund those needs. Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd.
and Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd. provided the
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financial support totally Baht 500,000 to Wat Muang Kwaug
School, Wat Salang School, Wat Sridonton School which are
located in Lamphun province and to Wat Ban Kling School
and Wat Ladrahong School which are located in Ayutthaya
province.

Support students from poor families

It has been a long-time custom for Hana JiaXing to
support the educational needs of students who are from poor
families and in need of financial help to further their studies
from primary school to university level.

In 2009, we supported 28 families in total. Out of
those, 14 students are from Shanghai region. We have been
providing help to them since we are located in Shanghai. Of
these 14 students, 6 students already graduated from universities
this year, 8 are still studying in universities and high schools.
Because of our support, they are able to escape from poverty
and contribute more to the society.
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In JiaXing community, the 14 students are from Xincheng
Town nearby Hana facility. Working together with the school
teachers, we pay high aftention on their studies and daily lives.
Most of these students’ parents are handicapped. We visited
them twice a year, sent donations to their hands personally
and organized games and activities during the visit. All the
students felt happy and their families expressed their gratitude
for our help.

Staff Training and Development Program

Hana recognizes that the competence of our people
is a critical factor for the success of organization. Hana
worldwide has a total of over 9,000 employees and we
continuously provide Training and Development program for
our employees to equip their knowledge and skills to align with
the business needs and strategic plan.

A Training and Development Program is also essential
in attracting and retaining a knowledgeable and skilled
workforce. A systematic people development program, both
internal and extemnal classes; New Hires Training Program,
Professional Tools Training and Development, Technical
Competency-Based Development (TCBD) Program, Quality and
Productivity Improvement Training and Development Program
have greatly contributed to develop a more highly skilled and
flexible workforce to ensure that they can build quality products,
increase the efficiency and improve the productivity within the
organization. We encourage our employees in various levels
to have involvement in the problem solving and quality/
productivity improvement e.g. 55, Lean Manufacturing
Concept and QCC. We have received the QCC Prizes from the
Technology Promotion Association (Thailand-Japan) since
Y2007. In addition, we provide the Multi-skills Program, Jolbs
Rotation Program, Career Path Development Program, Talent
Management Program and Succession Planning Program to
further develop the skills of our employees and build their
morale.

Corporate Culture Development

Corporate culture development has always been one of
our management’s focuses o cultivate employees to uphold
the important concept of maintaining good physical and
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mental health for their work life so that they are able to grow
personally and in the process, contribute fowards the continuous
growth of the company. For example, we organized development
program in cultivating good personal habits such as the
7-Habit program, Employee Happy Work-life program, and
various contests, efc. To cultivate good team work among the
employee, we organized get-together activities to employees
such as sport activities, group outing, contact wholesale price
consumer products sold to employees, arrange seminar on how
to manage personal expense, etc.

Social contribution

Executive management and employees donated
funds and necessary items to handicapped orphans atf the
“Rachawadi Children Home”, to help them with their basic
needs and requirements,

Blind and partially sighted people would like to read
books. However, not many of books are published in formats
that blind and partially sighted people can read. As such,
Hana staff volunteer in reading books for Thailand Association
of the Blind. The volunteer readers need to learn about the
audio machine; then they are required to record their voices,
so their voices can be recorded info audio books to keep at
the Blind library in order for them to have more opportunities
in news access and book reading.
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The company and employees in China also donated
RMB 50,000 to JiaXing local charities to help poor families and
handicaps cope with daily lives as well as old folks home.
This provided good impression to the local government that
Hana JiaXing is a good corporate citizen. It not only creates
job opportunities in JiaXing, but also showed concems to the
well-being and development of the local communities.

Environmental Management

Hana recognizes the importance of a clean and green
environment for mutual benefits of our employees, the global
community and future generations. We are committed to
integrate environmentally friendly practices into all aspects of
our daily activities necessitated by our business in following
guidelines:

1. have effective programs to minimize adverse
environmental impact through conservation of resources
(natural and processed) and materials

2. administer and establish responsible methods for the
use and disposal of hazardous substances to prevent
pollution

3. nurture our environment through continuous improvements,
in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations

4. advocafe open communication with our employees,
customers, suppliers, and the local community on the
importance of good environmental protection

In 2009, Hana confinues to pursue policies to reduce
energy usage such as reducing excess lighting infensity in
the office and manufacturing shop floor, installing variable
speed drive (VSD) for the pumps of Reverse Osmosis System
and Cooling Towers, checking and repairing the leakage of
compressed air pipes which resulted in the saving of over 3M

Baht per year. For water saving, we recycle water through

various systems enabling an increase in savings from 24% in

Q1 up to 35 % in Q4. Our gas reduction and chemical usage

reduction program provided a saving over a million baht

per year. We promoted Global Warming Programs such as

Songkran Party with the theme of "Think HANA Think Earth" by

giving canvas bags to co-op members to help promote the

reduction of plastic bag usage. Moreover, we have renovated
and made improvement of waste storage facilities and we
segregate waste aiming to make value added from recycling
items and reducing the impact of waste on the environmental.
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The Audit Committee of Hana Microelectronics Public
Company Limited is composed of three independent directors.
Members of the Committee meet the qualification and the
scope of work is in accordance with the rules and regulations
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

In performing its oversight responsibilities, the Committee
held 4 meetings during 2009. The meeting attendance of each
committee is as follows.

Committee Meeting
Aftendance
1. Mr. Bancha Tamprakorn, Chairman 40f 4
2. Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi, Committee 4 0f 4
3. Mr. Martin Enno Hom, Committee 40of 4

The Committee reviewed and discussed with the
independent and internal auditors of the scope and results of their
examinations including internal control, audit and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee also held regular
discussions with the Board of Directors regarding the preparation
of inferim and annual financial statements and the review of
management and operational systems for internal control and
legal compliance. The related party transaction has been
reviewed in addition fo the requirement that the directors
and management of the Company disclosed on an annual
basis for any related party transactions that may lead to
potential conflict of interest situations.

The external and internal auditors have full and
free access fo the Audit Committee. The Committee has
recommended fo the Board of Directors the suitable re-appointment
of the independent auditors of Emst and Young Bangkok Office
Limited for the financial year ending December 31, 2010.

The Audit Committee concludes its satisfaction with the
accuracy, completeness and creditability of 2009 financial
statements’ preparation and reporting, the adequacy of
internal control systems and the compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. There is no transaction that may lead
to conflict of interests. As a result, the Audit Committee has
no particular matter to draw to the attention of shareholders.

MY T /\(

Bancha Tarnprakorn
Chairman
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The Nomination Committee consists of three directors,
of which two are the independent directors. In 2009, the company
had one meeting and all committee members attended
the meeting. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
candidates on the basis of knowledge, skill, experience as
well as vision and attitude to match with the Company’s
requirement.

In respect of the candidate nominations for new director
appointments in 2009, the Company promoted the shareholders’
right to propose candidates for election to the board. The
policies and procedures to allow shareholders to propose
candidates for the election of the board are posted on the Company’s
website. However, there were no shareholders proposed
candidates to the Committee for review in previous year.
Therefore, the Nomination Committee reviewed those
directors whose term expired by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. The Committee has
considered that those directors potentially continue to make
further contribution to the board and the Company.

The Nomination Committee believes the candidate
nomination for director appointment process is proper and

transparent and in compliance of its charter.

ﬂmf e

Mr. Voraphoj Thepvanaprasiddhi

Chairman of Nomination Committee
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Overal Grop Performance

Hana Microelectronics Group ‘Hana’ Sales Revenue
decreased 11% year on year, to THB 13.5 billion in year 2009 from
THB 15.1 billion in 2008. Sales Revenue in USD terms decreased
13% to USD 392m in 2009 from USD 452m in 2008. Operating
Profits decreased 1.4% to THB 1,847.8m Baht in 2009 from THB
1,855.9m in 2008. Operating profits decreased 1.4% in USD terms
to USD 53.8m in 2009 and USD 55.5m in 2008.

Whilst 2009 sales revenues overall were 13% lower in
USD terms compared to 2008, the year 2009 had distinct and
contrasting changes in business trends, which were the opposite
of 2008. USD sales decreased year on year in the first half of
2009 by 23% whilst sales in the second half increased by 8%
year on year. The sales trend reflected the recession from the
global financial crisis at the end of 2008 and the subsequent
recovery initially through replenishment of depleted inventories
and later in the second half through the economic growth in
emerging markets which supported the global demand for
electronics.

Past Performance Analysis
Revenue Analysis

In 2009 IC assembly sales contracted 13% in USD terms
(-11% in THB terms). Sales contracted 20% in the first half but
were flat in the second half of the year (year on year), over
2008. The IC division in AYT sales declined 12%, and decreased
21% for the IC division in JXG. However, both divisions had
similar sales in the second half of 2009 compared to the same
period in 2008.

The Microelectronics divisions’ sales revenues
declined 10% (-6% THB) in 2009 over 2008. The microelectronics
operation in Lamphun declined 2% and JXG by 26% for 2009.
Sales in the first half declined 20% but increased 8% in the
second half on 2009 (year on year). Lamphun sales declined
14% in the first half but increased 37% in the second half of
2009. Microelectronics in JXG sales declined 33% in the first
half but increased 17% in the second half of 2009 compared
to the same period in 2008.

CPG sales fell 34% (-32% THB) in 2009 more than other
divisions due to the higher exposure to the motor vehicle
industry and move towards closure in 2014. Hana Microdisplay
Technologies “HMT”, sales decreased 20% for the year with
the contraction mainly from lower microdisplay sales with RFID
sales increasing in the second hallf.
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Gross Profit / Cost of Sales Analysis and Sales and Administration
Analysis

The Gross Profit margin was 19% in 2009 up 2% from 17%
in 2008 due to higher margin product mix in 2009 across the IC
and PCBA divisions. CPG division margin remained stable. The
Gross Profit margin increased slightly by 1% in 2008, as gross
profit in 2007 suffered from inventory valuation adjustments of
THB 100m due to the strengthening the THB/USD exchange rate
from the end of 2006.

Operating Profit Analysis

Operating profits were 1% lower in 2009 due to lower
sales however, operating margins were 2% higher at 14%
compared to 12% in 2008 due to lower SGA expenses. SGA
expenses remained at 6% of sales revenue but were THB 130m
lower as aresult of cost cutting, headcount reduction expenses
in 2008 and increased doubtful debt provision in 2008. The
operating margin remained at 12% for 2008 compared to 2007
as both the gross margin and SGA expenses did not change
materially for the year,

In absolute terms Sales and Administration costs were
reduced by 14% in 2009 but increased by 8% in 2008 compared
to 2007. However the SGA margin remained at approximately
6% of sales revenues during the years 2007 to 2009.

Similarly, Net Profit margin before exceptional items
increased by 2% to 15% in 2009 but remained at 13% in 2008
and 2007. Income taxation remained similar at 5-7% of Net
Profit before tax for the three years.

EBITDA margin also increased by 2% to 21% in 2009 and
rose slightly by 1% to 19% in 2008 from 2007.
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Payout Analysis

The company paid dividends per share of THB 1.50 (THB
0.50 - Dec 06 and THB 1.00 in May 07) in 2007 from the profits
of 2006, THB 1.30 in 2008 from the profits of 2007 and THB 1.20 in
2009 from the profits of 2008 being 56%, 51% and 57% dividend
payout of net profits before exceptional items respectively.

The final dividends are normally announced in the board
meeting in February of the following year for approval in the
annual general meeting in April paid out in May.
Financial Status

The group currently has no interest bearing debt. Cash
and short tferm investments at the 31st December 2009 were
THB 6.0 billion, 2008 THB 4.7 billion and THB 3.4 billion in 2007.
Asset Quality
Accounts Receivable

Most of customers are well known and have good
reputation in the IC, and electronics industry. Provision is made
of amounts outstanding over 90 days and amounts which the
management believe may be doubtful.

ANTNUAAIGNUTINNTANIBILIFEN UAZLSEMERE / Accounts Receivable Trade

198N 3 1AL / Less than 3 months
3-6 LAau / 3 - 6 months
6-12 1AaU / 6 - 12 months
| S A’
1N 12 nanaulil / More than 12 months
muqnwﬁ—aﬁﬁwﬁu / Total accounts receivable - other companies

in: Aiavilasdtazany / Less: Alowance for doubtful accounts
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2,281,059 1,514,771 2,429,800
9.382 30,274 20,921
3,266 7,013 5,295
5,768 1.266 1,132
2,299,475 1,653,325 2,457,148
-6.415 -13,052 -7.608
Inventory

In general, Hana's production is based on clients’
order, consequently, the majority of inventory are raw materials,
expendable tools and work in process with little finished goods
pending for customer delivery.

The group companies normally write-off out-of-date
inventory, and make provision for aged inventory and depletion
in the value of fixed assets, if material, each quarter.
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Inventory days were 58 days in 2009, 59 days in 2008
and 61 days in 2007.

Liquidity

The group has THB 6.0 billion in cash and short term
investments with no interest bearing debt. Liquidity ratios are
high at approximately 3 times current liabilities. Operating
Cashflow continued to be strong in 2009 with EBITDA at THB
2.8 billion which was similar to 2008 and 2007.

Cash reserves in 2009 increased by THB 1.3 billion
due to THB 1.1 billion cashflow affer dividend and capital
expenditure and a THB 0.2 billion reduction in working capital.
The cash increase in 2008 was also THB 1.3 billion due to the THB
0.5 billion reduction in working capital and the net operating
cashflow of THB 0.8 billion.

Capital Expenditure

Net Capital Expenditure was THB 754m in 2009, THB
1,049m in 2008 and THB 1,278m in 2007. Capital Expenditure
was lower in 2009 due to the reduced demand in the first three
quarters of the year.

Generally, capital expenditure for production equipment
will follow the increase in sales, particularly in the IC division.
However, there is a 3 fo 6 month time lag due fo the ordering
lead time. Plant expansion will depend on the current building
utilisation and lead time to construct new plant or expand in
an existing plant.

Source of Financial Capital

As the group as no inferest bearing debt and operating
working capital is positive the groups funding is from the
shareholders equity.

Major Factors which could have an Impact on the Company’s
Performance

The company business is that of an electronics
manufacturing service company. As such, it manufactures
products on behalf of its customers for shipment to them or
their customers. Therefore, the company’s performance is
mostly affected by its ability to win and retain business from the
existing and new customers. In fun, cusfomer demand is affected
by world economic growth and the customer’s sales growth.

As all the groups sales revenue are in foreign currency
(primarily USD) and USD currency costs are 60% percent of sales
revenues, the Group operating profit sensitivity to change in
the Thai Baht/USD and Chinese CNY/USD exchange rates is
currently about Baht 135m per quarter for every 10% change
in the average Baht/USD and CNY/USD rates (i.e. (1- 0.60) x
Sales Revenue x 10% ).
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The Group’s Thai companies balance sheet exposure
is a net asset of approximately USD 55m, being the foreign
currency working capital balance. Out of the groups foreign
exchange exposure, USD 50m is hedged, Foreign exchange
contracts are used to buy THB and Sell USD on a rolling 3 or 6
months basis.

Whilst the book value of the offshore companies are
represented in foreign currency, the effect of the change in
the exchange rate is shown by the movement of the foreign
currency ‘Translation Adjustment” in the shareholders funds
section of the balance sheet. There is no cash affect concerning
its movement.

The THB/USD currency movements reflected the
economic trends in emerging markets and commodities during
period. Whilst the average rate for 2009 THB/USD 34.3 was 3%
weaker than THB/USD 33.4 average rate for 2008 but similar to
THB/USD 34.6 in 2007.

For Hana being an export group of companies the
currency movements cause volatility in earnings due to effects
on the operating margins and also inventory valuations (which
the management report each quarter when there is a material
effect on the profits) and margins.

Exceptional Items

None in 2009 and 2008. The company sold 100% of
its 23.4% ownership in AIT in July 2007 to Unisem. The sales
and purchase transaction is completed and the Company’s
subsidiary received approximately USD 15.6 million in 2007.
THB 150m was provided in Q307 as a contingency due to an
income tax claim by the revenue department. This amount was
previously mentioned as a note to the accounts. The company
is in the appeal process.

Future Plan

In 2010, THB 200m for construction of a 5,000m facility
at the Ayutthaya site. THB 100m for construction of a 3,000m
facility af the Lamphun site. THB 150m for purchase of land for
expansion in Lamphun.
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Risk Factors
a)  Business Risk

The largest risk management perceive are significant
changes within our major client base which may be brought
about due to any number of external factors such as a change
in their ownership, or a change in their product program. Whilst
Hana's key strategy is to maintain a diverse base of customers
with different industry exposures; significant changes from any
one of our major clients can effect the group’s performance.
Market conditions resulting from changes in economic growth
rates of economies will also affect prices and demand for the
company'’s services.
b)  Production Risk

The production risks are -

e changes in manufacturing technology making existing
equipment obsolete.

e afactory partial or whole destruction by fire, flood or
earthquake. Whilst The company has multiple factories
there would be a loss of customers and a period of
months fo years to install new equipment and recover
customer orders.

e the companies ability to source suitably skilled staff
sufficient direct labour.

e Material Supply Chain risks. Inability of our suppliers to
deliver materials on time and in accordance with
specification.

©) Management Risk

The company employs a number of expatriate management
in key positions. Whilst the company does not have any
individual staff or management who are key fo the survival of
the business, loss of senior management and the company’s
ability to replace key management could affect the company’s
market value and business performance.

d) Financial Risk

Other risk factors which may affect the company are
exchange rates movements of the Thai Baht, political risk
and changes in interest rates and collection of receivables.
However, the company’s sales revenues and material costs
are almost wholly in USD which provides a natural hedge.
Capital expenditure is also in USD as the machines are mostly
imported from the region.

Industry and Competitive Condition

In 2009 the markets were weak at the beginning of the
year due to the global financial crisis. The second quarter
showed some signs of recovery and this strengthened through
to the end of 2009 for the microelectronics and IC businesses in
particular. The CPG and Hana Microdisplay businesses followed
a similar frend, however the recovery for the CPG division is
limited due to the lease expiry of its facility within 2014,

The company remains competitive by providing assemblies
to the qudlity level demanded by the customers and at a
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competitive cost. The management believes that company
maintains a competitive cost structure equal or lower than the
majority of its competitors.

Investment policy

The company maintains full management control over
each of its subsidiaries. Operational management for each
operating subsidiary factory lies with the factory general
manager reporting to the company president. Capital
expenditure and financial management are controlled through
the company’s corporate management, which is overseen by
the board of directors.

Aa1FENEAE/Company Faianuilna/Auditor 1l 2562 / 2009

s g lulasaidainsiing 471m W) / Hana Microelectronics Public Co., Ltd.
U3EN 8 elinauinimes (2E1887) 3117 / Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd.

15T #un [lmausnined (NN 9111 / Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd.
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ANLITNN9DL / Non - audit fee

4 a0 v
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Company

13n anun lulasdidaingiing 40
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Co., Ltd.
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Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Co., Ltd.
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BN aun idipeusniaas ngaumm 3110 /
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Co., Ltd.

certificate

FIUANMBLUNUEVELNULENS DL/
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The board of directors is responsible for the preparation
and integrity of financial statements and to make the timely
disclosure to investors. The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Such important information is adequately disclosed
in the notes to financial statement.

The maintenance of the internal control system is the
responsibility of the Board to reasonably assure that assets are
safeguarded from unauthorized use or disposition and that
the accounting records are sufficiently reliable to permit the
preparation of financial statements that conform in all material
respects with generally accepted accounting principles.

The board of directors has appointed an Audit
Committee. The Committee meets during the year fo review
with management and the auditors any significant accounting,
internal control, and auditing matters.

The Board is of the opinion that the financial
statements of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited
and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 2009 are
materially accurate, complete, and reliable.

MY T /\(

(Mr. Richard David Han) (Mr. Bancha Tarnprakorn)

Executive Vice Chairman Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer of Directors
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Report of Independent Auditor
To the Shareholders of

HANA Microelectronics Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the related
consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
separate financial statements of Hana Microelectronics
Public Company Limited for the same periods. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the
Company and its subsidiaries as to their corectness and the
completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is fo express
an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| did not audit the financial statements of an overseas
subsidiary company, whose financial statements are included in
the consolidated financial statements. This subsidiary company
had the total assets as at 31 December 2009 of approximately
Baht 231 million, representing 2 percent of the consolidated
total (2008: Baht 232 million, representing 2 percent of the
consolidated fotal) and total revenues for the year then ended
of approximately Baht 104 million, representing 1 percent of
the consolidated fotal (2008: Baht 126 million, representing 1
percent of the consolidated total). The financial statements
of this subsidiary company were audited by the auditor of this
subsidiary company and | had obtained the reports from its
auditor. My opinion, insofar as it related to any amounts and
particulars included for this subsidiary company, was based
solely upon the reports of the other auditor.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that |
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. | believe that my audits provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, based on my audits and the reports of
the other auditor, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries and of Hana Microelectronics Public Company
Limited as at 31 December 2009 and 2008, and the results of
their operations, and cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with generally accepted accountfing principles.

Kamontip  Lertwitworatep
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4377
Emst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 23 February 2010
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g / Balance sheets

3 g lulesdidaingting 9nie @vnan) waziasmeas / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries.

o UR 31 FUNAL 2552 waz 2551 / As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

Mll’]ﬂmg]
Note

AUNSne / Assets
aumé’wémg‘uﬁﬂu / Current assets

RUAALAZINENNILTIBLLYNREUAR / Cash and cash equivalents
L?uamwihmﬂ - qw% / Short-term investments - net

dy v N
anuunee / Trade accounts receivable

UsHmeial / Subsidiary companies 7,9
L3HaU - 4nF / Other companies - net o
ANULNN9AN - @3 / Trade accounts receivable - net

U 9

a v

aummm%a - qv@ / Inventories - net 10

auw%’wéwﬂguﬁﬂuau / Other current assets
{UNA9R9IE / Advances

niHTaTaFENAL / Input tax refundable

aa v -
MERULAUaAY / Income tax refundable

-
A€ / Others
iauauw%’wﬁmguﬁﬂuﬁu / Total other current assets

i"J:JElW]%’WETMH‘uﬁEIiJ / Total current assets
auw%’wmﬁwquﬁﬁlu / Non-current assets

L‘iuawqmiuu?ﬁmiaﬂ / Investments in subsidiary companies 1

L‘&uamus:ﬂ:maﬁu / Other long-term investment

da e o )
VAU mmﬂm@ﬂﬂim - @na / Property, plont and equipment - nef 2
Aundndluiifm - 4ns / Infangible assets - net 13

Aundndlinyudaudu / Other non-current assets
s’nuauﬁwé‘quuﬁﬂu / Total non-current assets

FUAUNSNE / Total assets

JUNTRUIIL
Consolidated financial statements

(gl U / Unit: Baht)

JuNITRUNIZAANIg
Separate financial statements

2552 2551 2552 2551
2009 2008 2009 2008
4272,065032  4,316,298,028 902,743,530 610,860,207
1,729,128,825 362,624,083 - =

- - 20,880,768 23,130,836
2293059875 1,540272213|| 1,052953,820| 495876686
2293,059,875 1540272213  1,073,834,588 519,007,522
1,756,823,504  2,060,582,235 527,897,418 788,892,584

8,717,817 22,110,159 558,722 10,003,985
28,093,285 41,962,825 6,311,780 5,101,548
8,136,856 19,411,601 8,136,856 19,411,601
61,210,454 53,230,380 12,681,164 9,086,685
106,158,412 136,714,965 27,688,522 43,603,819
10,157,235,648  8,416,491,524  2/532,164,058 1,962,364,132

- - 3427501838  3,427,501,838

97,000 97,000 97,000 97,000
5,605,406,696 5874216967  1,558,823,046 1,578,017,533
16,414,386 18,617,162 3,461,499 3.179.693
31,746,870 2,188,367 1,328,750 1,328,750
5653664952 5895119496  4991212,133 5,010,124,814
15,810,900,600 14,311,611,020  7,523,376,191 6,972,488,946

Mmamﬁ;ﬂizﬂauﬂ.mqilfmLﬂuﬁ'auwﬁwawumiﬁuﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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ung ) / Balance sheets (continued)
Ui g lulpsdiaainsting 4nne @) wazLasens / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
o Jui 31 FudNAU 2552 WAz 2551 / As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

g U / Unit: Baht)

SLNNTRUTIL JUNTRUANNZAANNS
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
NUNELNF) 2552 2551 2552 2551
o | - v Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
nuauLarauIaNnnaYiu / Liabilities and shareholders” equity
Mﬁauwaguﬁﬂu / Current liabilities
ﬁuﬁﬁm:ﬂ:%umnamﬁumaﬁu /
Short-term loan from financial institution 14 43,906,080 = = =
L%’mﬁm?%’] / Trade accounts payable
Uitelas / Subsidiary companies 7 = - 19,778,378 33,211,536
u?ﬁ’w%"u / Other companies 1.506.486,045 1,087.988,180 559,629,383 387,032,570
s’nuﬁmﬁmfﬁﬂ / Total trade accounts payable 1,506,486,045  1,087,988,180 579,407,761 420,244,106
RunmsassuaINLaEmeat /
Advances received from subsidiary company 7 - - 74 74
ﬂﬁ?zmmmiwﬁaui:m%u / Short-term provisions
Uszinaunisnauayuannisgnisiiiunii /
Provision for loss on tax assessment 255 150,465,664 150,465,664 150,465,664 150,465,664
d1989n193UL9MUAUAN / Provision for product warranty 173,002,377 151,951,401 - -
%qu / Others 9,276,526 10,779,847 = =
idmﬂizmmmwﬁaui:m%u / Total short-term provisions 332,744,567 313,196,912 160,465,664 150,465,664
‘Viﬁauwl‘;uﬁﬂuﬁlu / Other current liabilities
3 wilav / Other payable 512,109,568 140,591,070 42,600,033 17,876,367
AnldaneA19ane / Accrued expenses 151,780,909 156,440,510 22,941,621 27.985.286
MiEdulstiRyAAaAIINE / Comporate income tax payable 108,304,631 70,103 655 88,538,735 40,783,989
RuFuanamthanngnén / Advances received from customers 114,606,139 || 109.934,299 9.216,145 11,671,943
%‘qu / Others 34,676,389 35,878,399 13,724,729 21,529,604
ammﬁ%umuﬁﬂuﬁ'u / Total other current liabilities 921,477 636 512,947 933 177,021,263 119,847,189
mwﬁ%umguﬁﬂu / Total current liabilities 2,804,614,328 1.914,133,025 906,894,762 690,557,033
i"lll‘i/lﬁau / Total liabilities 2,804,614,328 1,914,133,025 906,894,762 690,557,033

mmamQﬂi:na‘uqumaﬁmﬂué’aumﬁwmmmiL‘&uﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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il (M) / Balance sheets (continued)
u3n g lulasaidalnating 9nfn W) wazusEmeas / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
0 TUR 31 §UNNAL 2552 UAT 2551 / As at 31 December 2009 and 2008

U3 U / Unit: Baht)

JUNNTIRUTIL IUNNIRUANIZRANT

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
NUNE L'Vi[?)‘ 2552 2551 2552 2551
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

’a"m‘]lméaﬂﬁu / Shareholders’ equity
NUITAUYU / Share capital
NuaAnziey / Registered
Viuanilty 1,000,000,000 iU YaAWUAL 1 LM /
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1.000.000,000  1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
yupeNTWILNEUaz T ALLYAMUR / lssued and fully paid-up

Vuanilty 830474960 YU YAALAZ 1 LN /

830,474,960 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 830,474,960 830,474,960 830,474,960 830,474,960
druiiuyannfuaniity / Share Premium 1723218982 1723218982 1723218982 1,723.218,982
ls @nw Ferladifimaess - dufuEhnImuanne
Lﬂ?\lﬂuuﬂmgamqﬁﬁﬁmmﬁuamu /

Unrealised gain (loss) - revaluation gain (deficit) on
Change in value of investments 8 68,996,217  (24,799.189) - -
HAFMIAINNNIULAIAILINNZRL / Transtion adjustrment (14,397,097 310,585,278 - -
finleazau / Retained eamings

AATIUAT - ANTRIPUNYNLE /

Appropriated - statutory reserve 16 320,218,399 322,419,837 100,000,000 100,000,000
TPATIUAT - féﬂimﬁumﬁm%ﬁu /

Appropriated - reserve for treasury shares 17 262,987,260 41,036,725 262,987,260 41,036,725
fl9111R49na99 / Unappropriated 10,077.774,811  9,390,553,682  3,962,787.487  3,628,237,971

druiuresnmiuaungninyammuiylvensntes /
Excess of cost of investments over net book value of the

subsidiary companies 24 - (154,975,555) - -
F2uALURENANU / Total shareholders’ equity 13269273532 12438514720  6,879.468.689  6,322,968,638
fuaniTyTeRu Mreasury shares 17 (262987260)  (41036725)  (262.987.260)  (41036,725)
SIUAILURIETANU - @NE / Total shareholders’ equity - net 13006,286,272 12,397.477.995 6616481429  6,281,931913
sruviiAusazdruteifietu / Totdl iabilfies and shareholders’ equity 15810900600 14,311611,020  7523376,191  6.972,488946

MmﬁL‘1/1Qﬂ?:ﬂ@hdﬂﬂﬂiL?‘imﬂuéﬁuwﬁ\iﬂmwlm’]iﬁuﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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JUMISNU

d‘i.lﬁ’]‘lﬁ?‘]nmnu / Income statements
usn g lulasdidalnating 9nfin (v wazuTEmeas / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
dwIuTlaugniui 31 Funnu 2562 uaz 2551 / For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Mg UM / Unit: Baht)

JUNTRUTIL JUNNTRULaNIZAANg
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
NUNEILNB) 2552 2551 2552 2551
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008
7ela / Revenues
‘i’lﬁl\lﬁ’?ﬂﬂﬂ’]i“u’]ﬂ / Sales 13,457,941,436 15,105,711,728 5,748,316,268  5,648,568,190
iﬁﬂiﬁauy/ Other income
AaNLLESY / Interest income 82,648,448 76,705,010 4,840,542 7,372,306
finlgandmsuaniideu / Gain on exchange 139,173,583 75.924,455 - -
Rutlunaiyl / Dividend income 42,421,726 18,000 621,558,000 || 440,017,998
Taunduanldanaainniszanlaziu /
Reversal of guarantee expenses 255 = 25,471,539 = 25,471,539
Eus] / QThers 213,589,941 229,156,678 53,074,706 60,473,132
sruselpau / Total other income 477,733,698 407,275,682 679,473,248 533,334,975
sausalR / Total revenues 13,935,675,134 15,512,987,410 6,427,789.516  6,181,903,165
Anldane / Expenses
ﬁunumﬂ / Cost of sales 10,956,720,032 12,544,342,939 4,557,890,554  4,611,322,354
Aldfanalunisang / eling expenses 150.263.314 178,578,317 26,941,333 29,817,389
AldAneluN1913MNg / Administrative expenses 520,097,503 636,182,880 136,889,339 121,731,350
mmﬂmmu@:iﬁmi / Management benefit expenses 7 73,934,619 84,264,221 7,561,925 12,207,307
ANUAINANIUANILIFELU / Loss on exchange - - 42,825,558 22,512,938
Aldianea / Other expenses 46,752,961 26,840913 - -
FauAl4ane / Total expenses 11,756,768,429 13.470,209,270 4,772,108,709  4,797.591,338
flgannisAntiueu / Operating incorl‘ne 2,178,906,705 2,042,778,140 1,655,680,807 1,384,311,827
fnls @ianw nnRussuluiddindesiidnianig /
Gain (loss) on liquidation of subsidiary companies 11 28,543,180 (3.755,548) = 3.191.757)
i lsnauanldmenainisRuuaznEduladayana /
Income before finance cost and corporate income tax 2,207,449,885 2,039,022,592 1,655,680,807 1,381,120,070
A LARNEN19NN9IRY / Finance cost (6.784.291)  (6,076,838) (1975042)  (2,037,061)
hlsnaumBRuliiFyAAe / Income before corporate income tax 2200665594 2032945754 1653705765 1,379,083.009
MERulAtlRYAAS / Corporate income tax (157.710021)  (123,395957)  (116,195922) _(55.416,632)
finlsanadwiil / Net income for the year 2,042,955573 1,909,549.797  1,537,509,843  1,323,666,377
ﬂ’]‘a‘LL?.ixiﬂuﬁ’]‘liq'ﬂE‘ / Net income attributable to:
drwinifuveetevuusenlvg / Equity holders of the parent 2042955573 1,909,549.797  1,537,509,843  1,323,666,377
ﬁ’]‘li‘rfiﬂﬁuq{ Earnings per share 20
ﬁﬂirﬁiaﬁusﬁuﬁugﬂu / Basic eamings per share
nlsangdunduvadeiuisinlng wam) /
Net income atfributable to equity holders of the parent (Baht) 2.53 2.30 1.90 1.59
Fuuuandiydaadaniatimiin @) /
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 808,585,721 830,133,221 808,585,721 830,133,221

- < o X
wmﬂWirszi:ﬂamummwﬂuéauwumNunwuuﬂ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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swuaninsilasuulasdiuundgnariu / Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity
u3n g lulpsdidalngting 91 W) wazu3Eme s / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
dmFLilauaniui 31 §unAY 2552 LAz 2551 / For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Atae: UM / Unit: Baht)

JUN198UTL / Consolidated financial statements
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VLNEYD) Nufiean dowiiu dufiu@Ennii WA finlsazau/Retained earnings doufiuans Vuaniiydaau/ 590/
Note e yarjuanny/ NuAmn annsulasan Snassuda/Appropriated e e $1ARUAIU Treasury Total
" = N P :
uazainszua/ Share premium mi‘nlJﬁEI:JlLﬂﬁ\I WNIRY/ I P Unoppropriated fqmm;]f?w]'\u shares
| Issued and UAANEMETIU Translation ) X unﬁmaqumﬂﬂ’aﬂ/
i T ANUNHNE/ iUy Tan/
paid up UDINUANNU/ adjustment Excess of cosf of
! Statutory Reserve for
share capital Revaluation gain investments over
reserve treasury shares
(deficit) from net book value of
o changes in fair the subsidiary
=1
g treasury value of companies
ol investment
0
2 .
g HaAAIVAD 0 TUR 31 FUrnAN 2550 / Balance as at 31 December 2007 830,405,960 1,722,077,722 = (26,723,246) 322,301,438 = 8,601,512,037 (158,725,555) = 11,290,848,356
cl v iavi s va_w
D eiliEn e TELluduan e / income (expenses) recognised directly in equity:
2 i R
3» ﬁuamu’tuwa"nm"wéxﬁama / Investments in available-for-sale securities
r s | va v
[s] Namﬂnumuﬁumummu“nawu / Loss recognised in shareholders’equity 8 = = (24,799.189) = = = = = = (24,799.189)
P
HAANAINNNTLLAIANLINNGIEY / Translation adjustment - - - 337,308,524 - - - - - 337,308,524
saumeliEn e iiugludmmesdforiu /
Net income (expenses) recognised directly in equity - - (24,799.189) 337,308,524 - - - - - 312,509,335
rilsqndm3utl / Net income for the year = = = = = = 1,909.549.797 = = 1.909.549,797
?1M?Wﬂ‘lﬁ(ﬂ'ﬂ'ﬁ'ﬁ"\ﬂ)@ﬂ%ﬂ"}%%‘uﬂ / Total net income (expenses) for the year = - (24,799.189) 337,308,524 = = 1.909.549.797 = = 2,222,059,132
Viuandryeandmiineluszvinil / Ordinary shares issued during the year 69.000 1,141,260 - - - - - - - 1,210,260
Suiludadng / Dividend paid 23 - - - - - - (1,079.353,028) - - (1,079.353,028)
rnlsazaundalalfdnass / Unappropriated retained earnings
Touudnsasnungwung / transferred fo statutory reserve - - - - 218,399 - (218,399) - - -
Tautﬂua’wmqﬁumﬁrﬁaﬁu / transferred fo treasury stock reserve 17 - = = = - 41,036,725 (41,036,725) = S S
Toundudnsasmungruneaessindesiiidnianig /
Reversal of statutory reserve from liquidation of subsidiary = = - - (100,000) = 100,000 = B B
drufiuresmduasuiiganiyammuiiyduenididosanas /
Decrease in excess of cost of investments over net book value
of the subsidiary companies - - - - - - - 3,750,000 - 3,750,000
Viuaniltygariu / Treasury shares 17 = - - - - - - - (41,036,725) (41,036,725)
HaAAUVAD D FUT 31 FudnAL 2551 / Balance as at 31 December 2008 830.474,960 1.723.218.,982 (24.799.189) 310.585.278 322,419,837 41,036,725 9.390.553.682 (154,975,555) (41.,036.725) 12.397.477.995

- < a &
Mmuw\9]Lh‘:’ﬂm_l\n_lmiNuLﬂuﬂ'duMuwaNumiNuu / The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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swuaninsidasunlasdiuundgnariu () / Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)

u3un g lulpsdidalnating 9nfim W) wazusEmens / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and ifs subsidiaries

dmFLilAauaniui 31 §unnAL 2552 LAz 2551 / For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

gaAANES 1 TUR 31 §UMAN 2550 / Balance as at 31 December 2007
ﬁﬁ‘l?@w%ﬁ’w%‘uﬂ / Net income for the year
?dniﬁﬂ‘lﬁﬁw%ﬁ’]w:‘uﬂ / Total net income for the year
Vuandigeandwinglusznindl / Ordinary shares issued during the year
Suifunaang / Dividend paid
. M
rilsazauidalilidnasstaududrsasiuaniinTan / Unoppropriated retained eamings transferred to reserve for freasury shares
vt
NUANIYTRAUY / Treasury shares

HaAAIVAD 4 JUT 31 §uanAu 2551 / Balance as at 31 December 2008

gaAANES 0 TUR 31 §UMAY 2551 / Balance as at 31 December 2008
ﬁﬁ‘l?@w%ﬁ’w%‘uﬂ / Net income for the year
?dniﬁﬂ‘lﬁﬁw%ﬁ’]w:‘uﬂ / Total net income for the year
Suifunaang / Dividend paid
. M
rilsazauidlilidnasstaududrsasiuaniinTan / Unoppropriated retained eamings transferred to reserve for treasury shares
vt
NUANITYTAAUY / Treasury shares

HaAAIVIAD 4 JUT 31 §uanAu 2552 / Balance as at 31 December 2009

JUNM91§UIIU / Consolidated financial statements

VLG Nuiean

Note e
wazdiszuda/

Issued and

paid up
share capital
830,405,960
69,000
23 =
17 -
17 -
830,474,960
830,474,960
23 =
17 -
17 -
830,474,960

dafiu finlsazau/Retained earnings
Haﬁlﬁﬁumﬁm/ %’ﬂﬁi‘ﬂLﬁ’)/Approprlcfed faladlfamass/
Share d9aq d9aq Unappropriated
L AIUNGVLNE/ ﬁumﬁrﬁaﬁu/
Statutory Reserve for
reserve treasury shares
1,722,077,722 100,000,000 = 3,424,961,347
= = = 1,323,666,377
= = = 1,323,666,377
1,141,260 = = =
= = = (1,079,353,028)
= = 41,036,725 (41,036,725)
1,723,218,982 100,000,000 41,036,725 3,628,237 .971
1,723,218,982 100,000,000 41,036,725 3,628,237 .971
= = = 1,637,509,843
= = = 1,637,509,843
= = = (981,009,792)
= = 221,950,535 (221,950,535)
1,723,218,982 100,000,000 262,987,260 3,962,787 487

g 1 / Unit:

Vuaniinganu/
Treasury

shares

(41,036,725)
(41,036,725)

(41,036,725)

(221,950,535)
(262,987,260)

Baht)

T/
Total

6,077.445,029
1,323,666,377
1,323,666,377
1,210,260
(1,079,353,028)
(41,036,725)
6,281,931,913

6,281931913

1,537.509.843
1,5637,509,843
(981,009.792)
(221,950,535)

6,616,481,429



\1‘1_1LLﬂmm?Lﬂa‘ﬂuLLﬂmﬁ'Juﬂm\iéaaﬁu (M) / Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)
U3 g lulpsdidalnating a0 v wazusEmees / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
dwIuTlaugniui 31 Furau 2552 uaz 2551 / For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

o

2 |

(= MUE: UM / Unit: Baht)

5 JUNM9UTIU / Consolidated financial statements

(3

N

... ; .

4 e . PR ()

c NUEING Nuiean Ay finlsazau/Retained eamings VuaniTnTanu/ 90/

ol o | o » T

gr hofe WA HarmVanLn/ AnA93Ua/Appropriated flalallfamass/ Treasury Total

a LAZINTZUAY/ Share dnsn 3o Unappropriated shares

=2 Issued and premium v o X

[= mungvang/ - uandiyteny/

- paid up

= Statutory Reserve for

g, share capital

a reserve treasury shares

ol

gﬂ

=3

(7]

£ 4

N ganAuNAa 1 Ui 31 §ulnAu 2550 / Balance as at 31 December 2007 830,405,960 1,722,077,722 100,000,000 = 3,424,961,347 = 6,077,445,029

§° rinlsanadm3Lal / Net income for the year - - - - 1,323,666,377 - 1323666377

r v a @

9 saunelfgnadwinil / Total net income for the year - - - - 1323,666,377 - 1328666377

-

§ uandeyeanimieluszninsdl / Ordinary shares issued during the year 69,000 1,141,260 - - - - 1,210,260

= 1
[uifunaane / Dividend paid 23 - - - - (1,079.353,028) = (1,079,353,028)
lsazauidsldlfvnasslaududrsosiuandiyTadu / Unappropriated retained eamings transferred to reserve for freasury shares 17 - - - 41,036,725 (41,036,725) - -
YuandayToru / Treasury shares 17 - - - - - (41,036,725) (41,036,725)

oA
ganAuNAa o U 31 FulnAu 2551 / Balance as at 31 December 2008 830,474,960 1,723,218,982 100,000,000 41,036,725 3,628,237.971 (41,036,725) 6,281,931,913
oA

ganAuNAa o U 31 FulnAu 2551 / Balance as at 31 December 2008 830,474,960 1,723,218,982 100,000,000 41,036,725 3,628,237.971 (41,036,725) 6,281,931,913
rinlsanadm3Lal / Net income for the year - - - - 1,537,509,843 - 1537509843
Tdu?ﬂﬂ1ﬁqw§ﬁﬁw§uﬂ / Total net income for the year - - - - 1,537,509,843 - 1,537,509,843
Suffunadng / Dividend paid 23 - - - - (981,009,792) - (981,009,792)
lsazauiisldlfdnasslaududrsosiuadiyTadu / Unappropriated retained eamings transferred to reserve for freasury shares 17 - - - 221,950,535 (221,950,535) - -
YuandoyToru / Treasury shares 17 - - - - - (221,950,535) (221,950,535)

& o o
ganAIaa U Juil 31 §uAN 2552 / Balance as at 31 December 2009 830,474,960 1,723,218,982 100,000,000 262,987,260 3.962,787 487 (262,987 ,260) 6,616,481,429
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JUNTZHANUAR / Cash flow statements
u3un g lulpsaidalniting 9nin W) wazusEmens / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
dwiulaugniui 31 §uiau 2552 uaz 2551 / For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

(Mgl U / Unit: Boht)

SUNTRUSI SUNTRURNIZAINIT
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2552 2551 2552 2551
2009 2008 2009 2008
N72LARUAAINNANTTUALTUIU / Cash flows from operating activities
ﬁ']‘liqmﬁn'aumﬁ / Net income before tax 2,200,665,594 2,032,945,754 1,653,705,765 1.379,083,009
sensdiunsrnusen lsgvsnaunEiuluaniu @ne) anfanssusitive /
Adjustments to reconcile net income before tax to net cash
provided by (paid from) operating activities:
AAaLNIIAN / Depreciation 1,005,338.368 961,730,829 251,772,621 231,385,981
ANAN91MLNE / Amortisation expenses 3,154,162 2,437,649 365,584 311,795
ilasdeazgey (aundl) / Doubtful accounts (reversal) (6,637.530) 5,444,051 - -
auINAuAAeLAnnnLazirdeulvit daundw) /
Loss from obsolete and slow moving inventories (reversal) (17,801,167) 87,166,166 9,635,529 99,023,226
ey (s annsdmieglnsal /
Loss (gain) on disposals of equipment 831,784 (320,555) 2,308,814 (73,357)
UANUINNISHREAIUBIAUNINE / Loss from impairment of assets 12,714,020 772,798 12,714,020 772,798
tazanunianiidussezdu / Short-term provisions 33,770,406 26,840,913 - -
Teunduanldaneannanszanusziu / Reversal of guarantee expenses - (25,471 ,539) - (25,471,539)
1anu (il antuamuluiidndesnidnianig /
Loss (gain) on liquidation of subsidiary companies (28,543,180) 3,755,548 - 3,191,757
hlsnnnedmiheiRuasuinAs? / Gain on sales of short-ferm investments (13,841.697) - - -
ey (Ml nmsileuulasgamersssuuasluamulundnvindied /
Revaluation loss (gain) on investments in securities held for trading (49.319,459) 5,156,400 - -
frlsvndnsuani Ben il Rrtsda / Unredlised gain on exchange (6,662,736) (29.865,817) (3.072,768) (847,494)
MANUAINAYYIERuAs s naasminds iR aauasa /
Unredllised loss on forward contracts 9.674,206 17,014,103 = 4,704,000
aliRuiiunaiuanusemeas /
Dividend income from subsidiary companies - - (621,000,000) (439,999.,998)
Tﬂﬂiﬁﬁuﬁuma%mnu%}'@u / Dividend income from other companies (42,421,726) (18,000) (558,000) (18.,000)
PRNILEFLANRLAUSZEIZEL / Inferest income from short-term investments (43,125,798) - - -
AnldaneaanLe / Interest expenses 539,330 3,003 - 165,903

flsanmsainduguneunsiaauuladlu
Auninduazniidusnduau /

Income from operating activities before changes in

R opergﬁng ossefsﬁond Iiabillifigs 3,058,334,577 3,087,591,303 1,305,871,565 1,252,228,081

AUNTWEIINNITANULNIU LNUUL) aRaN /

Operating assets (increase) decrease

qniin1s@ / Trade accounts receivable (741,703,184) 897,624,331 (550,560,644 417,437,412
AuAAUNAR / Inventories 321,559,898 57,603,092 251,359,637 (234,121,193)
AunFwdnyudeudu / Other current assets 959.933 33,612,548 (10,309.816) 14010510
ﬁum%‘wmﬁmquﬁﬁuau Other non-current assets 38,745 342,359 = =
wiliauannIeAiinnuiiaL (anad) / Operating liabiliies increase (decrease)
WWTinNgA1 / Trade accounts payable 423,086,418 (439,333,481) 157,750,776 (62.994,807)
Anlda18An9978 / Accrued expenses (4,801,307) 29,431,773 (5.185,371) 137,177
LT?B%'U@"NMﬁWjﬂQﬂ%'] / Advances received from customers 8,429,404 7,200,471 (1,711.,126) (10,930,197)
wildunyudaudu / Other current liabilities (27,332,338) (6,121,696) (7.804,875) 230,301
RuananRanasuaniiineu / Cash from operating activities 3,038,572,146 3,667.950,700 1,139.410,146 1,373,722.930
9nanantie / Cash paid for interest expenses (539,330) (3,003) - (3,003)
M H3uls / Cash paid for corporate income tax (106,381,698) (122,206,337) (65,313,824) (567,347 ,448)
RuanangaNnanIsuALLU / Net cash from operating activities 2,931,651,118 3,545,741,360 1,084,096,322 1,316,372,479

P < - X
vimmmaﬂsznm_mumiNul,ﬂuéaumuwmaummuﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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JUNTZHANUAR / Cash flow statements (continued)
u3un g lulpsdidalnating 91 W) wazusEmeas / Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
dwiuTaugniui 31 Furau 2552 uaz 2551 / For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

gl UM / Unit: Bah

SUNITRUSIY JUNTRURNIZAINIT
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2552 2551 2552 2551
2009 2008 2009 2008

ni‘:uﬁﬁuﬁmﬁnﬁ@n?‘mamu / Cash flows from investing activities
ﬁuamufmsﬂtﬁuéu / Increase in short-term investments (1,357,187,796) (392,579.672) = =
f&uﬁm?mnnmﬁﬂmﬂwﬁuamuﬁhmﬂ / Proceeds from sales of short-term investments 147,639,616 - - -
mamﬁﬂ?ﬂmnﬁuammw:%u / Interest income from short-term investments 43,125,798 = = =
Sunasasanennussmeasanad / Decrease in advances to subsidiaries = = = 3.808.,517
%’uﬁuﬁuamummu?ﬂmiaﬂﬁL?mﬁ@ms /
Return on investments from the liquidated subsidiary companies 72,403,317 - - 811,869
Sutlunaduannidsmeat / Dividend income from subsidiary companies - - 621,000,000 439,999,998
(3uilunaTUANLSEAY / Dividend income from ofher companies 42,421,726 18,000 558,000 18,000
%ﬂ‘ﬁ‘ﬁu mm‘:fl,tﬁzgﬂﬂmi / Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (401,829,791 (1,437 692,684) 219,243 ,276) (320,933.616)
Ruanfuannsdmiinegineal / Proceeds from disposals of equipment 35,988,409 7,170,877 9,079.994 1411215
FunsndlTmauiiny / increase in infangible assets (951,386) (10,680,178) (647.390) (2,726,410
Euw’fwﬂﬂmuﬁﬂuﬁlmﬁmﬁu / Increase in other non-current assets (29,597.248) = = =
Ruangngan 41U f9nssuamu / Net cash from (used in) investing activities (1,447 987,3565) (1,833,763,657) 410,747,328 122,389,573
NITUARUANAINNANTIUIANIRY / Cash flows from financing activities
ﬁuiﬁm:ﬂ:&’«v’mﬁmﬁuma‘ﬁuﬁ% / Increase in short-fem loan from financial institution 43,906,080 - - -
[unn9asdLaInNLFineasanas / Decrease advances from subsidiary companies = = = (385,139)
L?uﬁﬂ%u@ﬁnﬂﬁiLﬁunu / Cash received from share capital increase - 1,210,260 - 1,210,260
L‘Euamdqﬂéwﬁuﬁunu%ﬁu / Cash paid for purchase of treasury shares (221,950,535) (41,036,725) (221,950,535) (41,036,725)
Maduilung / Dividend paid (981,009,792) (1,079,353,028) (981,009,792) (1,079.353,028)
Ruananeldlilufanssudami&u / Net cash used in financing activities (1,159,054,247) (1,119,179.498) (1,202,.960,327) (1,119.564,632)
ﬁuamua:manmﬁﬂmﬁwﬁuamﬁ'ﬁu / Increase in cash and cash equivalents 324,609,516 592,798,210 291,883,323 319,197,420
NARAN9AINNNTULAIANLNNTIRY / Translation adjustment (368,842,512) 337,068,524 - -
RuasuazsenaifiLrhiuaniuiy @aay ang /
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (44,232,996) 929,866,734 291,883,323 319,197,420
RuanuazaneneeuynRuanull / Cash and cash equivdlents at beginning of year 4,316,298,028 3,386,431,294 610,860,207 291,662,787
Ruasuazsiemsifieuiduaslanel] muneme 6) /
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 6) 4,272,065,032 4,316,298,028 902,743,530 610,860,207
ﬁai‘;an?:uaﬁuamﬂmumﬁ'mﬁu / Supplemental cash flow information
mf;lmiﬁ“[ﬂhfﬁuamwnﬁﬂmi‘mmimnuﬂi:nauéﬁaﬂ /
Non-cash related transactions from investing activities

L%’mﬁtﬁ’a%@mm’:‘LLa:qﬂﬂitﬂLﬁluﬁu @nav) /

Net increase (decrease) in accounts payable for purchase of plant and equipment 371,518,498 (150,685,802) 24,723,666 (40,109.378)

‘mmnumnmmﬂﬁﬁuuﬂmzﬂamGuamu‘lumﬁ"ﬂm%’wétﬁamﬂ /

Revaluation loss on available for sale investments 93,795,406 (24,799,189 - -

a - ~ &
vimﬂmrqﬂizna1_|q'1_|ﬂﬂiNutﬂua’mwuwmqumal,quﬁ / The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note to consolidated financial statements

Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

1. General information
Hana Microelectronics Public Company Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated as a limited company under
Thai law and fransformed to be a public limited company under the Public Limited Companies Act on 27 January 1993.
The Company operates its business in Thailand and it is principally engaged in the manufacture of electronic
component Ifs registered address is af 10/4 Moo 3, Vibhavadi - Rangsit Road, Kwang Talad Bangkhen, Khet Laksi,
Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated under the

Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of
the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 30 January 2009, issued under the Accounting
Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial
tatements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Hana Microelectronics Public Company
Limited ("the Company”) and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”):

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 ¢ HANA MICROELECTRONICS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 83




RUNYIHQUS:NeUIUNISIIU

b)

c)

o)}

e

)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated as from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company,
using consistent significant accounting policies.

The financial statements of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Thai Baht at the average exchange rate on the
balance sheet date as to assets and liabilities, and at monthly average exchange rates as to revenues and
expenses. The resultant differences are shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in shareholders’ equity.
Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

The excess of cost of investments in subsidiary companies over the net book value of the subsidiary companies at
acquisition date has been charged as a deduction directly against the shareholders” equity in the consolidated
financial statements (The transaction occurred prior to 2000).

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries under the cost method, have been
prepared solely for the benefit of the public.

3. Adoption of new accounting standards

In June 2009, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued Notification No. 12/2552, assigning new numbers to Thai
Accounting Standards that match the corresponding Infemational Accounting Standards. The numbers of Thai Accounting
Standards as referred to in these financial statements reflect such change. The Federation of Accounting Professions has
issued Notification No. 86/2551 and 16/2552, mandating the use of new accounting standards, financial reporting standard
and accounting freatment guidance as follows:

7oL

3.1 Accounting standards, financial reporting standard and accounting treatment guidance which are effective for the current
year

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2007)
TAS 36 (revised 2007) Impairment of Assets
TFRS 5 (revised 2007) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontfinued Operations
Accounting Treatment Guidance for Leasehold Right

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Business Combination under Common Control

These accounting standards, financial reporting standard and accounting treatment guidance became effective
for the financial statements for fiscal years beginning on or affer 1 January 2009. The management has assessed
the effect of these standards and believes that TFRS 5 (revised 2007) and Accounting Treatment Guidance for
Business Combination under Common Conirol are not relevant to the business of the Company, while Framework for Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2007), TAS 36 (revised 2007) and Accounting Treatment Guidance for Leasehold Right
do not have any significant impact on the financial statements for the current year.

3.2 Accounting standards which are not effective for the current year

I erectve dore

TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 1 January 2012
Government Assistance

TAS 24 (revised 2007) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
TAS 40 Investment Property 1 January 2011

However, TAS 24 (revised 2007) and TAS 40 allow early adoption by the entity before the effective date.

The management of the Company has assessed the effect of these standards and believes that TAS 20 and TAS 40 are not
relevant to the business of the Company, while TAS 24 (revised 2007) will not have any significant impact on the financial
statements for the year in which it is initially applied.
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4. Significant accounting policies
4.1Revenue recognition
Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the
buyer. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax, of goods supplied after deducting discounts and
allowances.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.
Rental income
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.
Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
4.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
4.3 Trade accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the
estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection
experiences and analysis of debt aging.
4.4 Inventories
Raw materials, work in process and finished goods are valued af the lower of standard cost (which approximates
actual cost) and net redlisable value. Cost of work in process and finished goods includes direct materials, directlabour and
factory overheads.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value is set up for obsolete, slow-moving or deteriorated inventories.
4.5 Investments

a) Investments in securities held for trading of a subsidiary are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in thecarrying amounts of securities are included in determining income.

b) Investments in available-for-sale securities of a subsidiary are stated at fair value. Changes in the carrying amounts
of securities are recorded as separate items in shareholders” equity until the securities are sold, when the changes
are then included in determining income.

©) Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method. The
fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of the year as quoted
on the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Stock Exchange in foreign countries.

4.6 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss

on impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements - period of lease
Building - 20 years
Installation - 10 years
Other assets - 5-15 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.

No depreciation is provided on land, construction in progress and machinery under installation.
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4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.12

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost on the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and tested for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation
expense is charged to the income statement.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful lives
Computer software 5-10 vyears

Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, whether directly
or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting inferest in the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors and officers
with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment reviews in respect of the properly, plant
and equipment and other intangible assefs whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset
may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount. In determining value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by a valuation model
that, based on information available, reflects the amount that the Company and its subsidiaries could obtain from the
disposal of the asset in an arm’s length fransaction between knowledge able, willing parties, after deducting the costs
of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

Employee benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are recognised as expenses
when incurred.

Treasury share

Treasury share is stated af cost and is presented as a reduction from shareholders’ equity. Gains on disposal of treasury
share is determined by reference to its carrying amount and are taken to premium on treasury stock, losses on disposal
of treasury stock are determined by reference to its carrying amount and are taken to premium on treasury stock and
retained earnings, consecutively.
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4.13 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company and the subsidiaries have a present obligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
In addition, its subsidiaries also record provision for product warranty, which is estimated by reference to obligation for
product warranty under manufacturing contract.

4.14 Income tax
Income tax is provided in the accounts based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

4.15 Derivatives - forward exchange contracts
Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are franslated into Baht af the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Gains and losses from the translation are included in determining income.

5. Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles at times requires
management fo make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These
judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant judgments
and estimates are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates based
upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic
condition.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value
In determining an allowance for diminution in inventory value, the management needs to make judgment in estimating
loss from obsolescence and slow moving, and the reduction of net realisable value of inventories.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively tfraded and for which quoted market prices
are not readily available, the management exercises judgment, using a variety of valuation techniques and models.
The input to these models is taken from observable markets, and includes consideration of liquidity, correlation and
longer-term voldatility of financial instruments.

Impairment of equity investments

The Company tfreats available-for-sale equity investments and other investments as impaired when the management
judges that there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment.

Property plant and equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful lives
and salvage values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and salvage values
when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a periodical
basis and record impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the
carrying cost. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject
to the review.

6. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 as reflected in the balance sheets and cash flow

statements consist of the following: (unit: Baht
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

o NEENN  w NG

Cash in hand and atf banks 1,761,724,595 3.254,203,134 362,743,530 200,860,207
Bills of exchange 1.240,000.000 710,000,000 540,000,000 360,000,000
Fixed deposits with maturity

not over 3 months 1,270,340,437 352,094,894 - 50,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 4,272,065,032 4,316,298,028 902,743,530 610,860,207
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7. Related party transactions
During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business fransactions with related parties. Such
fransactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on com

mercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company and those related parties.
(Unit: Million Baht)

Transactions with subsidiary companies

(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)

Sales of goods 182 Prices agreed between the parties
due to the uniqueness of products
sold fo each customer.

Dividend income 621 Declared rate

Rental income 13 Contract price

Purchase of materials 80 Cost plus mark up

Purchase of fixed assets 14 Cost plus mark up

Service fee expenses 5 Rates stipulated in the agreement

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those related parties are

as follows:
(Unit: Baht)

Trade accounts receivable - subsidiary companies

Hana Microelectronics Investments Company Limited 13,341,319
Omac Sales Limited 4,219,397
Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc. 2,126,519
Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited 1,129,211
Hana Microelectronics International Company Limited 33,199
Hana Semiconductor International Limited 31,123

Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya) Company Limited -

Total frade accounts receivable - subsidiary companies 20,880,768

(Unit: Baht)

Trade accounts payable - subsidiary companies

Omac Sales Limited 17,445,149

Hana Microelectronics, Inc. 1.037.313
Hana Semiconductor International Limited 586,988
Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited 562,992
Hana Microdisplay Technologies, Inc. 145,936

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited -

Total trade accounts payable - subsidiary companies 19,778,378

Advances from subsidiary company
Hana Technologies Group Limited 74

Total advances from subsidiary company 74

7L
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Directors’” and management’s remuneration

In 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries paid salaries, bonus, meeting allowances and gratuities to their directors and man
agement totaling Boht 73.9 milion (the Company only: Baht 7.6 milion) (2008: Baht 84.3 milion, the Company only: Boht
12.2 million).

8. Short-term Investments

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Securities held for trading

Overseas marketable equity securities

Domestic marketable equity securities 41,361,059 11,083,002
Credit linked note 33,388,952 34,956,375
Total 108,138,963 80,995,752

Less: Revaluation gain (deficit) on investments

33,388,952

34,956,375

43,715,695

(56,603,764)

75,391,988

Securities held for frading - net
Available-for-sale securities
1,221,503,855

Overseas marketable corporate bonds 247,478,253

Quoted bonds 286,774,095 64,553,031
Total 1,508.277,950 312,031,284
Less: Revaluation gain (deficit) on investments 68,996,217 (24,799.189)
Available-for-sale securities - net 1,677.274,167 287,232,095

1,729,128,825 362,624,083

Total short-term investments - net

8.1 Securities held for trading

Since the third quarter of 2008, Hana Microelectronics Intfernational Company Limited, an overseas subsidiary company,
had invested in mutual fund of a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Cayman Island, warrants and shares of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), including the Credit linked note through an overseas bank.
These investments are held for frading purpose. During the current year, this subsidiary company additionally invested in
shares of a company listed on the SET and sold the entire amount of warrants and partial shares invested in previous
year, resulting in gain of HKD 2.6 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 11.6 million. In addition, the subsidiary had
redeemed the Credit linked note invested in the previous year, resulting in gain of HKD 0.4 million or equivalent to Baht
1.7 million and invested in a new Credit linked note through an overseas bank.

As at 31 December 2009, the subsidiary had assessed the fair value of the equity securities for mutual fund and the remaining
shares by referring to latest bid price as quoted on the Stock Exchange and for Credit linked note by referring to the
value quoted by the bank, in which the fair value had increased by HKD 11.4 million or equivalent to approximately Baht
49.3 million. The changes in the fair value of these investments were recognised in the income statement during the year.

As at 31 December 2009, investments in securities held for trading of HKD 117 million, or equivalent to Baht 518 million,
were used as security for short-term loan from financial institution as discussed in Note 14.
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8.2 Available-for-sale securities
In addition, this subsidiary had invested in private corporate bonds issued by various companies listed on the overseas
Stock Exchanges and quoted bonds through the three overseas banks. These investments are classified as available-
for-sale investments. During the current year, the subsidiary additionally invested in both listed corporate bonds and
quoted bondsthrough the three overseas banks and sold some of the bonds, resulting in gain of HKD 0.5 million or equivalent to
approximately Baht 2.2 million.

As at December 31 2009, the subsidiary had assessed the fair value of the bonds by referring to the value quoted by
Bloomberg in which the fair value had increased by HKD 21.5 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 93.8 million. The
changes in the fair value of such bonds are shown as a separate item in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

9. Trade accounts receivable
The balances of frade accounts receivable as at 31 December 2009 and 2008, aged on the basis of due dates, are
summarised below.

Age of receivable

Accounts receivable - subsidiary companies

Not yet due 16,260,329

Past due

4,325,251
593,365
436,316
265,507
20,880,768

Up to 3 months _
3 - 6 months -
6 - 12 months -

Over 12 months =

Total accounts receivable - subsidiary companies -

Accounts receivable - other companies

Not yet due 1.922,022,037 964,057,273

Past due

Up to 3 months 359,036,611 88,631,874

3 - 6 months 9.381,923 264,293

6 - 12 months 3,265,939 380

Over 12 months 5,768,275 -
Total accounts receivable - other companies 2,299.474,785 1,052,953,820
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (6.414,910) =

Total trade accounts receivable

- other companies - net 2,293,059.875 1,052,953.820

1,073,834,588

Total frade accounts receivable - net 2,293,059,875
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10. Inventories

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials
Goods in transit
Total

Separate financial statements
(Unit: Baht)

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials
Goods in transit

Total
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11. Investments in subsidiary companies

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

11.10n 21 December 2007, the Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders of Hana Trading Company Limited, a
subsidiary company, passed a special resolution to dissolve the subsidiary and the subsidiary filed for deregistration with
the Ministry of Commerce on 7 January 2008 and registered for liquidation on 2 July 2008. The Company received return
on its investment in this subsidiary of Baht 0.8 million.

Hana Semiconductor (BKK)
Company Limited

Omac Sales Limited

Hana Microelectronics
International Company Limited
Hana Microelectronics Investment
Company Limited

Hana Technologies Group Limited
Hana Semiconductor (Ayuthaya)
Company Limited

Total investments in

subsidiary companies

11.20n 1 May 2008, the two overseas subsidiaries which are Hana Semiconductor Investments Limited and Hana
emiconductor Enterprises Company Limited, had ceased their operations and had terminated their license with the BVI
Government Register. The Company incurred loss on investments under equity method of approximately Baht 3.8 million,
which was included in the 2008 consolidated income statement (under cost method in the separate income statement:
loss of Baht 3.2 million).

11.3 During the current year, Hana Microelectronics Company Limited (Shanghai), a subsidiary company of Hana Microelectronics
Investment Company Limited, registered for liquidation. Hana Microelectronics Investment Company Limited received
retumn on its investment in this subsidiary of USD 12.2 million or equivalent to approximately Baht 416.0 million, resulting
in gain on investment under equity method of approximately Baht 28.5 million, which was included in the 2009
consolidated income statement.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Cost

31 December 2008
Additions

Disposals

Transfer in (ouf)

Translation adjustment

31 December 2009
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2008

Depreciation for the year

|
|
Accumulated depreciation for disposed assets
Translation adjustment
31 December 2009 |
Allowance for impaiment loss
31 December 2008
Translation adjustment
31 December 2009 |
Net book value |
31 December 2008 1
31 December 2009 I
Depreciation for the year
2008 (Baht 834 million included in manufacturing cost,
and the balance in seling and administrative expenses)

2009 Baht 860 milion included in manufacturing cost,

and the balance in seling and administrative expenses)
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Separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Cost

31 December 2008

Additions

Disposals

Transfer in (out)

31 December 2009

Accumulated depreciation

31 December 2008

Depreciation for the year

Accumulated depreciation for disposed assets
31 December 2009

Allowance for impairment loss

31 December 2008

31 December 2009

Net book value

31 December 2008

31 December 2009

Depreciation for the year

2008 Baht 174 milion included in manufacturing cost,
and the balance in seling and administrative expenses)
2009 Baht 187 million included in manufacturing cost,

and the balance in seling and administrative expenses;

As at 31 December 2009, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The original cost of
those assets amounted to approximately Baht 3,148 million (2008: Baht 2,725 million) and for the Company amounted to
approximately Baht 568 million (2008: Baht 509 million).

A&
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13.

14

15.

16.

17.

Intangible assets
Details of intangible assets which are computer software are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Cost 28,674,420 4,911,557
Less: Accumulated amortisation (12,160,034) (1,450,058)
16,414,386 3,461,499

Net book value

Amortisation expenses included in
the income statements for the year

3,154,162 365,584

Short-term loan from financial institution

During the current year, Hana Microelectronics Intemnational Company Limited, an overseas subsidiary company, entered
into a loan agreement with an overseas commercial bank to borrow short-term loan of HKD 10.2 million or equivalent to
approximately Baht 43.9 million. The short-term loan bears interest at the rate of 4.35% per annum and is secured by the
pledge of the investments held under the account of the lender by the subsidiary company.

Warrants
As at 31 December 2009, the outstanding warrants issued to the Company’s employees and directors which remain
unexercised are as follows:

Outstanding unexercised warrants : 20,000.000 warrants

Exercise price : Baht 27.40 per share

Exercise ratio : 1 ordinary share: 1 warrant

Exercise period : From 31 October 2006 to 31 July 2010

Since exercise price of the above warrants exceeds the weighted average of fair value of ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2009, the Company expected that the warrants will not be exercised and had excluded the war
rants from the calculation of dilutive potential ordinary shares for diluted eamings per share calculation.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside to a
statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until
the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Treasury shares
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, details of treasury shares are as follows:

2009
Cost of treasury shares (Thousand Baht) 262,987
Number of treasury shares (Thousand shares) 25,596
Average price per share (Baht) 10.27
Percentage of freasury shares to the
Company’s shares in issue 3.08
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18.

7L

A resolution of a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No. 4/2551 held on 7 October 2008 approved the
repurchase of shares of the Company in order to manage its excess cash, increase earnings per share and to maximise
shareholder benefits, with a budget of not more than Baht 1,600 million. The repurchase shall not more than 83 million
shares, equivalent to 9.99% of total issued and paid-up shares of the Company. The period of repurchase of shares is
from 22 October 2008 to 22 April 2009 and these shares are to be sold after 6 months from the date of completing the
repurchase of shares, but not more than 3 years. During the current year, the Company repurchased 21.12 million ordinary
shares with fotal cost of Baht 221.95 million (2008: 4.48 million ordinary shares with total cost of Baht 41.04 million).

Under the Notification of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission No. Gor Lor Tor. Chor. Sor. (Wor) 2/2548
and the Notification of the Federation of Accounting Professions No. Sor. Sor Wor Bor Chor. 016/2548, public limited
company is required to set aside retained earnings in an amount equal to the amount paid for treasury shares until either
the shares are sold or paid-up capital is reduced by cancellation of any remaining unsold shares. During the current year,
the Company has set aside Baht 221.95 million as reserve for treasury shares (2008: Baht 41.04 million). As af 31 December
2009, reserve for treasury shares amounted to Baht 262.99 million (2008: Baht 41.04 million).

Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Raw materials and consumables used 7,643,770,510 3,507,481,000
Changes in inventories of finished goods

and work in process 158,128,113 70,795,710
Salary and wages and other employee benefits 1,920,550,641 580,988,765
Management benefit expenses 73,934,619 7,561,925
Depreciation 1,005,338,368 251,772,621
Loss on exchange = 42,825,558

Product warranty expenses 28,093,879
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Notes to Financial Statements

19. Promotional privileges
The Company and its subsidiaries have received promotional privileges under the In vestment Promotion Act B.E. 2520 as approved by the Board of Investment. Subject to certain
imposed conditions, significant privileges are as follows:

1. Certificate No.

2. Promotional privileges for

3. The significant privilege are

3.1 Exemption from corporate income tax
on net income derived from the promoted
operation and exemption from income tax
on dividends paid from the promoted
operations which are tax exempted
throughout the period in which the
corporate income tax is exempted.

3.2 5% dllowance of the increment in
export income over the preceding years.

3.3 50 % reduction of the normal corporate
income tax rate for net income derived
after the expiry date in 3.1

3.4 Exemption from import duty on machinery
as approved by the Board.

3.5 2 times deduction of transportation,
electricity and water expenses from the

first earning operating income

4. Date of first eamning operating income
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During the year 2009, the Company was approved by the Board of investment to cancel the promotion certificate
no. 8010/2536 and 8036/2536.

The Company’s operating revenues for the years could be divided according to promoted and non-promoted operations

as follows:
(Unit: Baht)
Promoted operations Non-promoted operations Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Sales

Domestic sales 133,365 3,139 69,220 1,480,998 202,585 1,484,137
Export sales 5,455,292,671 5,338,119,823 292,821,012 308,964,230 5,748,113,683 5,647,084,053
Total sales 5,455,426,036 5,338,122,962 292,890,232 310,445,228 5,748,316,268 5,648,568,190

20. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares held by public and in issue during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares held by public and in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would need
to be issued to convert of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the
conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in the consolidated and separate financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008 is calculated as follows:

(Unit: Shares)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

2009 2008
Balance brought forward (net of treasury shares) 825,997,860 830,405,961
Add: Shares issued during the year - 39,196
Less: Treasury shares (17,412,139) (311,936)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 808,585,721 830,133,221

As at 31 December 2009, there were outstanding warrants of 20,000,000 warrants (2008: 25,956,100 warrants). However,
the warrants were excluded from the calculation of potential diluted ordinary shares for diluted eamings per share
calculation for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 since their exercise price exceeded the weighted average
fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company.
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21.

22.

70 L

Segment information

The Company and its subsidiaries mainly involve a single industry segment in electronic component and mainly carry
on their business in the geographic areas in Thailand, Hong Kong, the United States of America and China.  Geographical
segment information of the Company and its subsidiaries as at and for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are
as follows.

(Unit: Million Baht)

10,640

Revenue from external customers

Infersegment revenues 195 3.288 (3.483)

5562

Total revenues

Segment income

Unallocated income and expenses:
Other income

Gain (loss) on liquidation of
subsidiary companies

Gain on exchange

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses
Management benefit expenses
Other expenses

Finance cost

Corporate income tax

Net income for the year

Property, plant and equipment - net 4,011 1,594 -
Other assets 16,724 16,507 (23,025)
Total assets 20,735 18,101 (23,025)

Transfer prices between business segments are as set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

10,206
15,811

Provident fund

The Company, the subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the
Provident Fund Act B.E. 25630. Both employees and the Company or the subsidiaries confribute to the fund monthly at the
rates of 3.0 - 7.5 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by SCB Asset Management Company Limited, will be
paid to employees upon terminating in accordance with the fund rules. During the year 2009, total amount of
approximately of Baht 40 million (2008: Baht 36 million) had been contributed to the fund by the Company and its
subsidiaries, and Baht 16 million had been contributed by the Company (2008: Baht 10 million).
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23. Dividend paid
During the year 2009 and 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries had dividend payments as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

The Company
For the year 2009

Dividends on 2008 income

Total for the year 2009

For the year 2008

Dividends on 2007 income

Total for the year 2008

Subsidiary companies

Hana Semiconductor (BKK) Company Limited

For the year 2009

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Interim dividend in respect of the income for the period
from 1 January 2009 to 30 April 2009

Total for the year 2009

For the year 2008

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earmings
Interim dividend in respect of the income for the period

from 1 January 2008 to 30 April 2008
Total for the year 2008

Hana Semiconductor (Ayutthaya) Company Limited

For the year 2009

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Total for the year 2009

For the year 2008

Dividends on the unappropriated retained earnings

Total for the year 2008
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24. Excess of cost of investments over net book value of the subsidiary companies
On 30 April 2009, the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company No. 16/2009 passed the resolution
approving the offsetting of the excess of cost of investments over net book value of the subsidiary companies amounting
fo Baht 154,975,555 which the Company had already deducted in the consolidated shareholders” equity as at 31
December 2008, against the unappropriated retained earings in the consolidated shareholders’ equity. The Company
recorded such transaction in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders” equity for the year ended 31
December 2009.
25. Commitments and contingent liabilities
25.1 Capital commitments
As af 31 December 2009, the Company and its subsidiaries had capital commitment of approximately USD 11 million or
equivalent to Baht 357 million, relating to the acquisitions of machinery.

25.2 Operating lease commitments
The Company and its subsidiaries operate their business in Bangkok on a leased premise, the lease agreement of which is made
between the landlord and a related company. The lease is for a period as from the year 1986 up to the year 2014 with the annual
lease payment of approximately Baht 0.2 milion in the year 1992 and subject fo an increase at the rate of 10% per annum.

25.3 Marketing supportive service agreement
Since the year 2001, the Company and four subsidiary companies entered into marketing supportive service agreement
with an overseas subsidiary company. Under that agreement, the Company and the four subsidiary companies have to
pay service fees to that subsidiary company at the rates stipulated in the agreement.

25.4 Guarantees
As at 31 December 2009, there were oufstanding bank guarantees of approximately Boht 181 milion (2008: Baoht 187
milion) issued by banks on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of certain perfomance bonds as
required in the normal course of business of the Company and the subsidiaries. These included letters of guarantee
amounting to Baht 144 million to be security for the tax assessment of a subsidiary company made by the Revenue
Department (as discussed in Note 25.5) and Baht 36 million fo guarantee electricity use and Baht 1 million among others.

25.5 Tax assessment and litigation

a) During the year 2003, the Company received a notification of a corporate income tax assessment for the year
1997 from the Revenue Department for not allocating interest expenses and loss on exchange rate of loans to the
promoted operations, causing the under recording of corporate income tax for the year 1997, which together with
elated penalty and surcharge amounted to Baht 150 million. The Company did not agree with the assessment and
appealed it fo the Tax Tribunal. In November 2007, the Tax Tribunal rejected the appeal. Currently, the Company is
in the process of appealing to the Supreme Court and expects that the Supreme Court will reverse the judgment of
the Central Tax Court, which will not result in any fax payment to the Company.
However, the Company has recorded provision for loss on tax assessment of approximately Baht 150 million and has
placed a bank guarantee as security against the assessment.

b) In 2006, the Company had contingent liabilities from legal action which the Company disputed conceming the Company’s
purported obligations with regards to the liabilities of a former related company. The Company made full provision for
estimated maximum payment in event of an unfavorable ruling by the court for approximately USD 1 milion or equivalent to
Baht 31 million together with legal cost and interest at the rate of 10% per annum. In February 2008, the Company had made
sefflement agreement and general release for this case in which the Company already paid for such guarantee expenses of
Baht 7.9 milion. The Company had therefore reversed the remaining guarantee expenses of Baht 26.5 million as other income
in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008.

26 Financial instruments
26.1 Financial risk management and policies
The Company’s and its subsidiaries” financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 32 “Financial In
sfruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, frade accounts receivable,
investments, and accounts payable. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed
is described below.

Credit risk
The Company and the subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to frade accounts receivable. The
Company and the subsidiaries manage the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and
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therefore do not expect to incur material financial losses. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying
amounts of receivables as stated in the balance sheets.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s and the subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to their cash at banks and short-term
loan. However, since most of their financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates, or fixed interest rate which
are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2009 classified by type of interest rates are summarised in
the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the
maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

Consolidated financial statements

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0.001 - 1.710

Short-term investments 1.780 - 9.378
Trade accounts receivable -
Total financial assets

Financial Liabilities

Short-term loan from financial institution 4.350

Trade accounts payable
Total financial liabilities

Separate financial statements

0.25 - 1.00

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts receivable

Total financial assets

Financial Liabilities

Trade accounts payable

Total financial liabilities

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s and the subsidiaries” exposure to foreign currency risk arise mainly from trading transactions that are de
nominated in foreign currencies. The Company and its subsidiaries seek to reduce this risk by entering into forward ex
change contracts when they consider appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts will mature within one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2009 are summarised

below.

As at at 31 December 2009, an overseas subsidiary company had outstanding forward exchange contracts, of which
details are presented below.

33.3688
4.8929
23.7134
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22 January 2010
10 March 2010

In addition, the subsidiary company entered into the linked asset swap agreements with an overseas bank. The details of
the swap agreements outstanding as at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

2-Year China government bond
Credit default swap - quoted bonds 2
26.2 Fair value

Since the majority of the Company’s and the subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-term in nature which carry

floating interest rate or the interest rate close to market rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different
from the amounts presented in the balance sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the market price of the financial
instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

27. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s and its subsidiaries” capital management is to ensure that they have an
appropriate financial structure and preserve the ability o continue their business as a going concern.

According to the balance sheet as af 31 December 2009, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 0.22:1 (2008: 0.15:1) and
the Company’s was 0.14:1 (2008: 0.11:1).

28. Subsequent event
On 23 February 2010, the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company No. 1/2010 passed a resolution approving
the dividend payment from the 2009 income to the Company’s shareholders at Baht 1.40 per share or a total of
approximately Baht 1,127 million. The dividend will be paid on 12 May 2010.

The dividend payment will later be proposed for approval in the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders.

29. Reclassification
Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 have been reclossified to conform fo
the current year's classification but with no effect to previously reported net income or shareholders’ equity. The

reclassifications are as follows:
(Unit: Baht)

Property, plant and equipment - net 5,874,216,967
Intangible assets - net 18,617,162

Balance sheets

1,5678,017,533
3,179,693

Income statements

Administrative expenses 636,182,880 121,731,350
Management benefit expenses 84,264,221 12,207,307
Other expenses 26,840,913 =

30. Approval of financial statements

70 L

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 23 February 2010.
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